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ASSEMBL¥MAN BEN JAM1 N FRANKL IN, 111, {THE VI CE-CHAIRMAN~-

1 will call the public hearing of the Legislative 

Commission on Conflict of Interests to ordero Senator Murray, 

our Chairman, has advised me that he has been delayed and will 

be a little late in reaching here. In order not to hold 
"-

up any 

of our witnesses who have taken the time and trouble to appear 

before us this morning, he has requested that I as Vice-Chairman 

of the Commission open the hearing and proceed with ito 

I would like to ask any of the witnesses who wish to 

appear before us this morning, or any persons who have not 

registered with our counsel, Mro John Yauch, who is seated by 

the microphone, to register with him, giving their names and 

their addresses We will be glad to hear any person here today,o 

time being sufficiento 

I would like to turn the hearing over now to our counsel, 

Mro Yauch, who will call the first witnesso 

MRo YAUCH~ Mro Chairman, since the last public hearing ' 

of the Gommission 1 which was held on september 16 1ast, I 

received a copy of a letter addressed to Senator Murray as 

Chairman of the Commission from senator Edward Jo O'Mara, in 

which he comments on part of his testimony given at the hearing 

on September 16 0 1 think it would be well to read this into 

the hearing because it might influence what the next witness 

may have to say; namely, Mro John R. Kelly, First Vice­

President of the New Jersey State Bar Association o 

This letter is dated September 23, 1957, and, as 1 stated, 

is addressed to the Honorable James F. Murray, Jro, as Chairman 

of this Commission. 
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"Dear Senator Murray: 

UDuring the course of my testimony before your 
Committee on Monday~ september 16th~ I said that in 
my opinion t he bill proposed by the State Bar 
Association would prohibit members of the Legislature 
from practicing law ,and that I felt that it was 
entirely too stri!1g'i!i;tl~. 

ttl have since been advised by MrG Milton To Lasher, 
President of the State Bar Association, that the bill in 
the form proposed at the December meeting of the Bar 
Association in Asbury Park, which was the bill I referred 
tO$ was amended at the June meeting in Atlantic City by 
adding at the end of Paragraph 3 the following sentence: 
vThis section shall not be construed to apply to , ;" ) ', ~) l ~'): , , ' 

appearances before any Courto' I was not at the June 
meeting and did not know of the amendment, although I 
had previously been advised by Mro Carpenter, Chairman 
of the Committee of the Bar Association which dealt with 
the matter, that he was contemplating the proposal of 
such an amendmento That was the reason I was careful to 
check with Mro Yauch to see whether or not the form of 
the proposed bill wa~ the same as the one which I had in 
my file.. Mro Yauch advised me that his copy was the same 
as mineo For that reason I assumed that the bill had not 
been amended o 

"The amendment, of course, removes one of the serious 
objections to the bill~ but in my opinion it is still too 
stringent .. Even in its amended form it would prohibit the 
appearance of lawyers before the Inheritance Tax Bureau 
which in effect would bar them from handling estate work o 

It would probably bar them from appearing before the Work~ 
menis compensation Bureau which is not a court.. It would 
prohibit appearances before such agencies as the public 
utility- Commission, the Alcoholic Beverage Commissioner 
and the Dapartment of Banking and Insurance even in con­
troversies essentially between private parties.. Further­
more, I rei t erate my opinion that there is no reason why 
a member of the Legislature should not appear before a 
condemnation commission o At th&,t stage :t'$e:' matter is a 
litigated one and the condemnation commission is merely 
an arm of the court appointed by the Sup~rior Court Judge 
of the county where the proceeding is taking Q~iice. 

III sincerely regret that my testimony was in part 
based upon an error as to the contents of the bill. 
would appreciate it if this letter were read into the 
record. 

HWith kindest regards, I am 

Since re 1 y yours $ 

Edward Jo Q'Mara" 
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May I say t ha t whe re t he Senat or r eferr ed to hi s 

inqui r y of me wh il e he was t es t i fyi ng a s to whe t he r t he 

bi l l was the same s 1 d id not s ee the bi ll o He read pa rt of 

the bi l l to me and didnut fin is h reading Secti on 39 he s a i d D 

nand so fo rtho U 1 had befo r e me at t he t i me a c opy of t he 

bill which~ as the COmmission will re call~ I made ava il ab l e 

to the members of the Commis s i on by gi vi ng yo u t he substance 

of the proposed bi lls by t he stat e Bar Ass oci a tion o So i t was 

one of those unavo i dabl e errors o I as sume d t ha t t he bi l l tha t 

Senator O'Mara was refe rr i ng to had t hat excep tion i n ito 

Thi s make s the reco rd clear so fa r as t hat is concernedo 

MRo MARCIANTE~ Am 1 right s Counsel l or 9 it appears here 

that Senator OOMaraU s pos ition is that we ough t t o practical ly 

remai n as we are now~ a nd not enact any l e gisl a tion ? 

MRo YAUCHg No p I don ~t think t he subs t ance of Senator 

OOMaraos test i mony is to t hat effect o I rece ived a t r anscr i p t 

of the testimony a t t he heari ng on Sep t embe r 16 t hs and 1 onl y 

read it again last n ight~ and 1 be lie ve the substance of t he 

$enatoros testimony i s t hat a Code of Et hi cs woul d be appro = 

priate and s in cer t ain def i ned c lear f i e l ds 9 legislati on would 

also be app r op r ia t e t o dea l with t h i s sub ject t hat has been 

assigned to thi s Commissiono 

MRo MARCIANTE~ Of course 9 1 am not an atto r ney and I 

don~t understand t he implIcations that are cont ained i n t he 

proposal made he r e He doesnut say tha t they should be pe r ­o 

mitted to go before condemnation comml ssions~ but he says 

that there should be no r e s triction agai nst ito I be l ieve 

thatQs the wording he use do 
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It seems to me that the spotlight has been focused on 

this entire matter because of that very thing, and 1 was 

( 
wondering whether that was his position or not6 He said 

~ 
• something about because of not having as yet been adjudicated -

I believe is the language he uses o Will you explain that to 

US? 1 would like to get that clear in my mind o 

MRo YAUCHg Wel19 I dislike stating what my conception is 

of the conclusions of Senator OVMara, because the record of his 

testimony has been given to each member of this Commiss i on o 

But my observation== 

MR. ~RCIANTE: I am talking about the letter here o I am 

not talking about his testimonyo 

MRo YAUCH~ I would say that the effect of this l etter of 

September 23rd from Senator OIMara~ with reference to the 

subject you just referred t0 9 namely, appearance before a 

condemnation commission 9 is that he believes that a legislator 

should be permitted to appear before a condemnation commission 

because he conceives that that is a quasi-Judicial bodY9 an arm 

of the court" which is appointed by the court for the purpose 

of hearing testimony in condemnation cases So my direct a nswe r o 

to you, Mre Marciante, is that I believe this letter fro m 

Senator 09Marastated that he believes that legislators should 

be permitted to appear before condemnation commissionse 

NOW, there is one other letter that I would like to read 

into the record = which is a very short one - which has to do 

with the same subject that is referred to in Senator OflMarans 
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let tero The letter is on the letthead of the New Jersey 

state Bar Association 9 is dated September 17, 1957, and is 

• addresse d to me ~ 

I1Dear Mr .. Yauch~ 

"The newspaper today in reporting on the 
appearance of former State Senator Edward Je O'Mara 
of Jersey City before the LegislatureUs Conflict 
of Interest Study Commi ssion at Trenton quoted him 
as saying that the bill proposed by the New Jersey .!" 
state Bar Association would exclude a lawyer memberis 
of the Assembly or Senate from practicing before any 
State Courte This was an understandable error on the 
Senatorus part because he was probably referring to 
one of the earlie r reports of our committee on 
Conflicts of Interest which could be so construedo 

UHowever, the bill was re-drafted to meet 
objections which had been made to it and the re­
drafted version submitted to and approved at our 
annual convention at Atlantic City in May of this 
year contained the following language in Section 3 
which dealt with the appearance by a member of the 
Legislature before State agencies: 

!This Section shall not be construed to 
apply to appearances before any Court., u 

1·1 would very much appreciate it if you would 
place this on the record of your next Commission 
meeting since we do not wan t any member of the 
public to receive the i mpression that the bill 
proposed by our Association did not reflect careful 
thought and a reasonable appreciation of the position 
of the Legis1atoro 

You rs very trulY9
lsi Milton To Lashero I~ 

Now, Mro Chairman and members of the Cbmmission~ 1 

introduce Mr. John Ro Kelly, First Vice - President of the 

New Jersey State Bar Association, who is here for the 

purpose of giving the views of the Association with respect 

to the report which the Association made e There were two 

reports ~ the original report and then a second report., 

The original report has attached to it a copy of the bill 

which the Committee p r epared, which has to do with the 
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matter of conflict of interest so far as legislators are 

concerned, and under Report No.2 the 'lbill attached has to 

do with state officers and employees. 

MR. JOHN Re KELLY: Gentlemen, this statement was 

prepared and agreed upon unanimous ly by all of the membe rs
• 

of the Special Committee on the Study of Conflict of 

Interests of the New Jersey State Bar Associatione 

A special Conflict of Interests Committee of the 

New Jersey state Bar Association was constituted in May 

1956 to study the subject which is now occupying the 

attention of this committee. Two bills were drafted which 

have been submitted to your committee o Copies 9 in due course~ 

will be supplied to all members of the Legislature. 

The State Bar Associatlon~s committee has reviewed 

testimony developed at your hearing on September 16, as 

reported in the press~ pertaining to legislators in their 

personal and business relations with state agencies. With 

due deference to the opinions of critics as registered 

before this committee and in comments in the public press, 

we must nevertheless state that we find these criticisms 

unavailing~ with our faith in the soundness of our proposals 

undiminished o 

Nothing said so far can shake our conviction that, 

in a democracy, the citizenry is entitled to a guarantee 

that all decisions reached or actions taken by a state 

instrumentality are based wholly on merit, Justice~ 

equIty and fair play. Stated another way, the public must 

be given the assurance there is no room in its State govern­

ment for resort to influence, privilege or favoritism, 
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whether open or covert. 

We also believe in realism. We believe the ground 

rules for service in the Legislature cannot be left to an 

ambiguous code of ethics with vague sanctions. Rather, we 

• 	 believe these rules must be given the dignity, force and 

stature of codified law~ with the penalty for infractions 

stated in explicit terms. Between a legislator and the 

public, there exists a fiduciary relationship of the highest 

degree. The terms of such a trust must be clear and 

unequivocal, and provide sharp teeth for violation. 

For many years members of the Legislature have 

represented third parties before state agencies It would beo 

wrong to impute unethical motives to these men, for they 

were merely following what time had made a standard practice. 

But now government has become so complex, with so many ramifi­

cations affecting industry and commerce, that the public 

interest demands that legislators pretty much wear only one 

hat. The bill proposed by the state Bar Association 

clearly shows when and where this hat must be worn and when 

and where it may be doffed for another. It provides legis­

lators with a clear standard of conduct and equally clear 

guide lines o 

The bill proposed by the state Bar Association 

should not be construed as impugning the integrity of the 

Legislature. Rather, it should be regarded as establishing 

a compact between legislators and the publico If our 

bill is enacted, a legislator, in effect, would say to the 

public: Itl am fully aware of the strictures imposed on 

7 
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me as a member of the L'egislature, and I willingly accept 

them as an integral part of the trust you impose in me,," 

The public would not be the sole beneficiary of 

this compact.. It would serve also as a shield for our 

legislators~ safeguarding them from possible attacks that 

they sought legislative service merely for personal advantage 

or gain. Moreover, protection would be provided for any 

state instrumentality concerned. It would be freed from 

pressure or influence and also possible accusations that its 

decisions or actions were improperly motivated. In other 

words, by specifying the ground rules, the bill proposed by 

the state Bar Association expressly defines the rights and 

obligations, as the case may be, of each party - the public, 

the legislator~ and the state instrumentality involved. 

This clarification, we maintain, is essential to good 

government" 

Some critics of our bill say you cannot legislate 

morality. This is speciouso The history of our law, in great 

part, is a record of societyvs achievement in formalizing 

or codifying ethical and moral concepts that have brought 

peace and order into human relationships. If you reduce 

the argument that you cannot legislate morality to its 

ridiculous conclusion, the Legislature should repeal the 

New Jersey Crimes Act as being the stuff that dreams are 

made of 0 

other critics of our bill maintain that the way 

to handle the conflict-of=interest problem is through the 

ballot box - vote the rascal out. This is fine in theory 

but not in practice.. Only the big scandals become election 

issues. Scores of other cases, where the pressure and 
8 
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influence are subtle and insidious but9 nevertheless; very much 

presentJj have a way of going wholly u..T1detected,9 wi th the 

electorate left in blissful ignorance. The ballot box; more­

over$) is a slow weapon )) aVailable to the public only once every 

two or four years D as the case may be. For the breach of public 

trust involved,9 a fast 9 handy and simple remedy is needed ­

and i t is provided by the penal t y clause in the state Bar 

Association's billo 

It is a l so argued that the restrictions and pro­

hibitions in our bill would foreclose many fields of 

practice to attorney~leglslators and others and,9 hence, con­

siderably narrow the number of persons qualified and willing 

to serve in the Legislatureo We reject this thesis as untenablee 

There is not now and never will be a dearth of outstanding 

candidates for seats in the Assembly or Senate if our proposals 

are~l;laQted into lawo 

It should be borne in mind that the state Bar 

Association?s bill was draf t ed by a large committee of lawyers 

wholly cognizant of the biliis pocketbook threat to their 

professiono Let us remember)) to0 9 that this bill was unanimously 

approved at the Associati on 's annual meeting last May)) which 

attracted a record~breaking number of New Jersey lawyers. WhYs 

it may be asked$ shoul d such a large assemblage of attorneys 

vigorously advocate p roposed legislatIon with obvious economic 

disadvantages for their profession? 

The answer i s no t difficulto These men believe 

that, in a democracy~ the criterion should be the greatest 

good for the greatest numbere They believe that guaranteeing 
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the public fair play in government is vastly more important than 

preventing some e conomic discomfort for a relative fewo They 

also believe that~ de sp i te the restrictions cont ained in the bill1 

t here would be cons i derably more t han enough attorneys and members 

of other ca l lings and prof e s sions who would be ready~ able, and 

eager to seek l egislative offlce The spur would be the honoro 

of the office~ t he es t eem of t he public~ the opportunity to 

serve the stat e and9 l ast but certa inly not least~ the $5,000 

annual salaryo 

We a re deal i ng he r e with a complex problem. Experience 

shows it cannot be solved by good intentions or half measures. 

It demands a forthr i ghts realistic approach, which recognizes 

the ti¥~th of the Ol~~~;F.idage that }lne cannot serve two masters ­
'\,(4" ; \ ~ . ,J t ' 

the public and a private client,;' We respectfully submit that 

the bill sponsored by the New Jersey state Bar Association 

fully resolved t his prob l em of conflicts of interesto 

If 1 maY9 pe~sonally, for Just a moment call to 

your attention some t hing which may have been forgotten over 

the last few months~ Within t he year~ in our federal government~ 

the conflict of interest l aws - and you know they have them ­

plus the public a tt itude have tripped up men in high public 

office:> including cab i net members. Within this year a member 

of the President ' s cab i ne t re si gned because his public office 

telephones had been use d t o promo t e private interests. 

In another case an Assistant Secretary of Defense 

took a leave of absence wh il e the Senate cond~cted i t s ~dnqui:ry 
I 

to determine whethe r a pu b l i c contract awarded to a member of 

his family was properly awa r ded s even though it was awarded 

10 
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to the lowest bidde~ with al l the p~otections that are supposed 

to be wrapped around t his bi dd ing system. 

1 must say to yo u that t he law we propose 15 9 to be sure, 

an exacting codee I t poses a serious question concerning 

restraints on publ ic offic i a l s& But none of us wou ld say that 

a legislator who happened to r epresent a particular industry 

could conscientiously and right ful ly and morally introduce and 

advocate the passage of a bi ll which would benefit his particular 

industry; no r would we s ay that an attorney or other representa­

tive who represented t he interests of labor could corne forward 

and!) without regard ~ and t~~tIS important to remember - for the 

over-all public good 9 urge the passage of legislation which would 

only benefit his parti cular constituents. 

We doubt that there is any question the public demands 

that there ;~ cannot be a wh i sper of conflict between publ ic service 

and private gaino 

On occasions our proposals may prove to be harsh but 

it is the high standard t ha t demands that pub l ic officials must 

be above susplciono For my part l1 1 would not like to see this 

standard lowered. Only by keeping this standard high can we 

expect to ma i n t ain public mora l~tyG Adherence to this high 

standard 1s t he purest bas i s for complete public trusto 

Personally~ I was hopefu l that our Legislature would 

have favorably considered this legislation long before this 

date~ since i t is in t he public eye now for over sixteen monthso 

But 1 realize t ha t t hese t hings move slowlyo This was perhaps 

hop,!ng for too mucho But my confidence in the ul timate passage 

of this type of bill :rema ins undinm~do I am cer t ain there are 
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sufficient leaders among t he men in the Senate and Assembly whose 

private interests do not blind them to the public necessity. 

Of this, gentlemen~ you may be abso l utely certain9 that whether 

the presen.t l.eg i slat ul'le. takes action or not on this bi 11 - as 

hopeful as I am that it will - you may rest 'assured that the 

state Bar Associat i on wil l not leave a s t one unturned to continue 

i ts efforts~ each month if necessary but certainly year after 

year, until the Legislature of the state of New Jersey takes 

action and passes such a billG 

As sponsor of the or iginal resolution which created the 

committee or which led to the creation of the committee of the 

state Bar Association, I personally will continue my interest. 

Thank you for this opportunity to appear here. 

MR. MARCIANTE~ Mr. Kelly, I take it then that you are 

diametrically opposed to the position taken by the E C O. The 

E C 0 is an organization - I don't know how many there are, but 

we had a witness here at our first hearing who testified for 

the E C 0, and his theory was that good men are driven from 

government be cause they are not 
' . 

allowed to operate without 

criticism 9 etc., and he opposed any kind of legislation. Your 

Bar Association takes an exactly opposite view. You are, then!) 

for the enactment of these two bills which you have here. That 

is your total p r ogram? 

MRo KELLYg It iso And in answer to the suggestion 

that good men are driven out of public office - not enough 

good men take an interest in public office~ and thatRs the 

reason why we have the situat i on we have. 

MR. MARCIANTEg Well, they cite the Wilson case o 
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MR. KEATINGg Mr. Kelly, would you care to comment on 

Senator OtMaraWs revised opinion on your proposed bill9 and 

with particular reference to the pa.rt where he makes some 

strong representations that lawyers would be prevented from 

appear ing before certain agencie s or condemnation corruniss ions. 

What is the Bar AssociationUs feeling on that? Do they feel 

that they should be prevented Or' will there be 'some modification 

of your bill to provide for Senator orMara's objections? 

MRo ' KELLY~ I must state that I disagree with the Senator. 

CertainlYl1 all of the members of the Legislature and the public 

itself recognize the terrific conflict of interest that occurs 

any time a lawyer would attempt to represent both sides of a 

dispute 0 yet we have lawyers who are members of the Legisl ature" 

and who certainly must be representatives of the State, becoming 

involved before state agencies and commfssions wherein private 

interests are concerned. 

1 might say to you that various persons have spoken to 

us and criticized the bill as being too harsh. May 1 just 

point out,J. as :~ Mr. Marciante referred, I believe» to the Wilson 

case and other cases, that men in high public office in the 

federal government, as you know, canvt even hold stock in such 

companies. They are prohibited from practicing before certain 

agencies, and the question has arisen, "Well. there is quite 

a difference between the salary they receive and the salary 

a State Senator receives." 

I tell you now that there are very~ very few state 

Senators in New Jersey who would exchange thei r personal 

income for what the average personal income for Congressman 
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is.. The pe r sonal Income fo r a Congressman is somewhe r e around 

$20~0009 and for that he must maintain two homes 9 t ake care of 

all his traveling expenses 9 and do many thin gs whi ch require 

the expenditur e of moneY9 and he has no t ime t o engage in 

publ ie practi ce.9 much less to appe ar hefo re pub! Ie agencies in 

the federal governmento 

MRo KEATINGg Now9 I don ut want t o pu t myself in the 

position of defe nding Senat o r OYMara 9 bu t I would like your 

comment on some of his statements~ For instance~ in our last 

hea r ing j he made the stat ement that 9 wi th our complex business 

life today, it is hard for anybody to do business without coming 

in conflict with the State - licensing, for instance 9 inheritance 

taxes.. If I were to take what he says at face value, I get the 

impression that the moment a lawyer went into the Legislature 

he was all through practicing law. He would be all through 

practicing law the moment he we nt in t o the Legislature. 

In other words, he gave me the impression that you can 

hardly start out in the mo rning without doing business with 

the State in some form or ano t he r o 

MRo KElJ...Y~ Perhaps I shouldnnt say this!, but Ism sure 

that if you were to take the average s uccessful lawyer, you 

would find that while he has some contact in some instances or 

a great deal of contact in bus i ne s s with state agencies, that 

average successfu l lawyer wo ul dn ut have anything l i ke the 

amount of business with sta t e agenc ie s as the ave r age Senator 

would have o And we might ask why? 

MR." YAUCH~ Gent l emen $> may I say this~ . MI' l) Kelly 

informed me this morn i ng tha t he ha s a mat t er wh.i ch requ i res 

14 

You are viewing a document archived at the New Jersey State Library.



his attendance in court in Newa rk at twelve o!clock, and I had 

in mind that many .of the que stions wh i ch you have thus far put 

to Mr. Kelly could appropriate ly be put to subsequent 

witnesses who are here on beha lf of the s t ate Bar and who are 

also sponsoring this statement whi ch Mr .. Kelly has read into 

the record. So" if itvs agreeable to YO'lls 1 would suggest 

that we excuse Mr& Ke l l y and then hol d these questions which you 

have, which I apprecIate are very i mpo r t ant one s ~ until the 

followIng witnesses appearo 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLINg I know the members of the 

Commission will be glad to do that ll Counsel .. 

I would Just like to say to Mr. Kelly that we of the 

Commission appreciate very much your coming down here this 

morning to testify.. We know that the State Bar Association 

has spent a great deal of t 1me and effo rt and thought in 

developing the proposals which you are presenting to us today. 

We intend to give them the mos t careful consideration. We 

appreciate greatly the thought and effort which the state Bar 

Association has put into this ve ry imp ortant subject .. 

MRo KEtLY~ Believe me, gentlemen, 1 regret more than 

anyone else not being able to s i t here and answer your questions .. 

I would be delighted at anot her t ime~ 

MR.. YAUCHg I would Jus t like to add this one thought 

to what you have said., Mro Frankl In: 1 think this reportj} ~ or 

the two reports, that the s t a t e Bar made» the formal repo r ts, 

and these views wh ich Mro Ke lly has e xpr essed here this morning 

will be very helpful to t hi s Cornmission & It cert ainl y give s us 

the full and complete viewpoint and, f rom my observat ion» itus 

a very competent!) coura geous a nd fo r thright stat ement of the 

position as t hey see it e 
15 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN~ Counsel$ wil l you call the 

next withess. 

MR. YAUCHg Mr. Chairman and gentlemen of the Commission , 

our next witness is Mr. James n: Carpenter, Dean at the Bar 

of the State of New JerseY9 of Jersey CitY9 who was Chairman 

of the New Jersey State Bar Committee at the time the two 

repor.ts which I have already referred to were pr epared and 

submitted to the State Bar Association membership. It is 

with great pleasure that I introduce now Mr. Carpenter. 

JAMES D. CARPENTERg Thank you, Mr. Yauch. 

Gentlemen, I appreciate very much the opportunity of 

corning here and giving you the views of our Committee which 

prepared this bill, these two billso I personally presented 

these bills to our Association - the first one at the meeting 

in A~bury Park last December, which had a very large attendance 9 

and there was only one gentleman who voted against it when it 

was moved for adoption. At the conclusion of that meeting, 

after that bill was approved, the Association adopted a 

resolution directing our Committee to prepare t his second 

bill relating only to State employees and officers employed 

by the State. That bill was presented in Atlant ic CIty at 

the meeting in May, which was a very much la r ger meeting, 

and the first bill was moved because it had been amended 

and that was approved - both of them - unanimously . 

Now, we had before us sworn testimony which was given 

to a commission appointed by Governor Edison when he was 

Governor of this State, and te s timo ny of a grea t many witnes s es 

that was taken by him. The report i s on fi l e in the State 
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Library and I was furn i shed a copy. . I am refer I' ing to a 

report by Mr. Roger Hinds who conducted that investigation 

some years ago. We also examined the laws of many states~ 

the constitutions of many states p and patternedl' I may says 

our law to a large extent on the provisions of the acts of 

Congress relating to this very subject. And! think that is 

so important that I have had copies of the pertinent acts 

of Congress made and! will be very happy to give a copy to 
, 

your Counsel and copi,s to you gentlemeno 

May I say this~ We have in the acts of Congress laws 

that are practically the same as this draft of lawo Here 

are copies that I will give to you~ Mr. Yauch g and copies to 

the members of the Cornlnittee .. 

Now, this Section 281 of the United States Code was 

adopted 90 years ago by Congress and it provides that whoever 

being a member of or delegate to Congress or a resident 

commissioner, either before or after he has qualt'fied 9 or 

the head of a department» or other officer or employee of 

the United States or any department or agency thereof 9 

directly or indirectly receives or agrees to receive any 

compensation for any services rendered or to be rendered p 

either by himself or another, in relation to any proceeding 9 

contract 9 claim 9 controversy, charge, acc usation g arrest or 

other matter in which the United States is a party : or 

directly or indirectly interested before any departments 

agencYj court martial g officer 9 or any clvil9 mili t ary or 

naval commission, shall be fined not mo r e than $10 9 000 or 

imprisoned not more than 2 years. or both, and shall be 
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incapable of holding any office of honors t r ust or profit~ 

under the United States. 

Look at Section 282 - Whoever being a member of or 

delegate to Congress or a resident commissioners either before 

or after he has qualified 9 practices in the court of claims 

shall be fined not more than $10 9 000 or imprisoned not more 

than 2 years, or both, and shall be incapable of holding any 

office of hanor, trust or profit, under the United States. 

Then 283 ~ Whoever being an officer or employee of the 

United States or any department or agency thereof 9 or of the 

Senate or House of Representatives, acts as an agent or 

attorney for prosecuting any claim against the United States, 

or aids or assists in the prosecution or support of any such 

claim, otherwise than in the proper discharge of his official 

dut:ies, or receives any gratuity or any share of or interest 

in any such claim in consideration of assistance in the 

prosecution of such Glaim, shall be fined not more than 

$10,000 or imprisoned not more than 1 years or botho 

284 - Whoever having been employed in any agency of 

the United States, including commissioned officers assigned 

to duty in such agency, within two years after the time when 

such employment or service has ceased, prosecutes or acts 

as counsel, attorney, or agent for prosecuting any claims 

against the United States, embodying any SUbject directly 

connected with which such person was so employed or performed 

dutyg shall be fined not more than $10~000 or imprisoned not 

more than 1 year, or both. 
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Now, the representatives of the State of New Jersey 

in the Congress of the United States, whether it be a 

Congressman or a Senator, is forbidden to have any interest in 

a claim against the United States or to prosecute the claim 

in the Court of Claims. That means you can't prosecute a 

claim for under $10,000 in the United States District Court, 

or any court in the Court of Claims no matter how much is 

involved. And yet, the representatives of the State of New 

Jersey, as far as interests in the State of New Jersey are 

concerned, have up-to-date been allowed to appear before 

condemnation commissioners, they have been allowed to present 

their claims to departments before the condemnation commissioner 

is appointed; they have influenced the appointment of condem­

nation commissioners; and they haveprosecuted cases before 

condemnation commissioners, taken appeals and prosecuted the 

claims before the courts and even on appeal. They could not 

do that if they were members of Congress. And ,why, if they 

can't do it in Congress, should they be allowed to do it in 

the State of New Jersey] It seems to me the reason it is 

not allowed in the United States of America is a sound reason 

why it should not be allowed in this State - because there is 

a conflict of interest as between the individual who has a 

claim against the State and his representative representing 

the State of New Jersey_ He is acting in a sense for both 

sides. And we think those matters are wrong. 

Mr. Hinds, in his report, shows instance after instance 

where the State has been compelled to pay more money where 
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a Senator or an Assemblyman represents the claimant, than it 

would if he were represented by somebody outside. That directly 

affects the public purse and directly affects the interest of 

the State. 

No one can say that we haven't been able to get good 

representatives in Congress from New Jersey because of this 

law, and certainly it is a lot more difficult to represent the 

State of New Jersey in Congress than it is in the Legislature 

of this State because the representative, be it Senator or 

Assemblyman, in the State ~ doesntt~have to spend practically 

all of his time out of the State to work in Congress and be 

deprived of the opportunity to carryon his own affairs as 

he can if he is a member of our Legislature. 

That answers, 1 think completely, the contentions of 

Senator O'Mara who probably hadn't read these Acts of 

Congress and didn't realize how they affect the people of 

this State. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: Mr. Carpenter, I want to say 

at the outset, again, that the Commission appreciates very 

much your appearing before us today. We know that as a 

distinguished member of the Legal Profession you are a very 

busy mano So at the outset I want to thank you for appearing 

before us and taking the time out of a very busy schedule. 

MR. CARPENTER: If I can be of any help to the interests 

of the State and its people, I am glad to do it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: We are most appreciative of 

your aid to us and your being down here today. Now, one of 

our problems that faces this Commission, it seems to me, is 
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a question of degree, really. I suppose that all of us, to 

some extent, have a conflict of interest. We are taxpayers, 

for example, and any legislation affecting taxes I would suppose 

would involve some degree of conflict of interest when you as 

a taxpayer also as a member of the Legislature pass on revenue 

raising bills. And I wondered, therefore,if I might qsk you 

several questions, specific questions.regarding the provisions 

of your proposed bills in an effort to determine the extent 

to which you think they should go, and I would like to refer 

you to section 3 of bill number one regarding the Legislature, 

and ask you several questions as to it. 

MR. CARPENTER: May 1 say this: I take it from the 

newspaper reports that I have read and what little I have 

read of Senator O'Mara's testimony, that there is no objection 

to paragraphs 1, 2, and 4 of the bill, and the only objection 

to paragraph 5 was that it provided that for such an offense 

anyone was forever disqualified from holding any office or 

position of trust or profit under the State. Aside from that, 

it seems to me I have heard no criticism of those other 

paragraphs. 

MR. YAUCH: You didn't include, Mr. Carpenter, 

paragraph number 30 

MR. CARPENTER: No, I passed that up because Mr. 

Franklin's question was directed to that. But may I point 

out that that provision in paragraph 5 was taken from the 

Act of Congress. That was my precedent. Now then, we 

address ourselves to paragraph 3. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: Thank you, Mr. Carpenter. The 

first question I have is - was it your feeling that that 

paragraph when it refers to a State agency or other instru­

mentality of the State of New Jersey, by whatever name 

designated, - does that include a municipality and municipal 

bodies? Municipalities are, of course, I suppose in a 

general sense, instrumentalities of the State. 

MR. CARPENTER: While it is true that a municipality 

is an instrumentality of the State, it was never my thought 

that it would apply to his appearance before a councilor 

a board of freeholders. 

AS'SEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: In other words, it was your 

feeling that the intent of that section was to limit it to 

State agencies in the normal sense and not to include county 

agencies or municipal bodies? 

MR. CARPENTER: That's right. And here is the reason 

in back of it, that i~ that - referring now to State Senators, ­

they have control largely over the fixing of compensation, 

the fixing of terms, the appointments, etc. It is a matter 

of influence. What influence would they have, for instance, 

over the actions - or what control would they have over the 

man in an agency if he didn't do what they wanted him to doZ 

That is the purpose back of it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: Now, I have another question, and 

this concerns the prohibition contain~d in this section which, 

as I gather its prohibits any member of the Legislature, either 

directly or indirectly, from appearing before any State agency 
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in relation to any cause, proceeding, application, or other 

matter involving any award, license, contract, certificate, 

ruling, decision, opinion, rate schedule, franchise, claim 

or benefit. Now, I wondered about the situation, for e~amp}., 

of a member of the Legislature who is a businessman and who 

filed, we will say, an employer's schedule in connection with 

his unemployment compensation tax. I suppose to some extent he 

is participating in a decision of the State agency that the 

tax he is paying is proper and Just. Now, does this prohibition 

apply to a situation such as that, do you think? 

MR. CARPENTER: 1 would think that he is complying with f 

the law when he is filing a report that the law requires •. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: Now, suppose that there is a 

difference of opinion as to the :' proper amount involved between 

his business and the State agency; what would happen, in your 

opinion, in that case? 

MR. CARPENTER: I think that the Senator or the 

Assemblyman himself should not assert the claim. I think it 

should be asserted by some other officer of his corporation 

or a partner or somebody like that. 

ASSEIvIDLYMAN FRANKLIN: v-Je 11 that br ings me to my next 

question. If~ for example, he is president of a corporation 

or member of a partnership and if his partner appears, or 

another officer of the corporation appears, as you suggest, 

is he appearing indirectly before the State agency under 

the terms of this sectioni and, if he is, would the prohibition 

apply? 
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MR. CARPENTER : Well certainly I don't think the law 

should go that far. 
• 

ASSEMBL~~ FRANKLIN: The reason I raise the question, 

sir, is because it seems to me that the breadth of the language 

before us might indicate a possible application to such a 

situationo 

MR. CARPENTER: Well certainly I don't think that is 

the intention of anybody. We don't want to prevent anybody 

who has an honest and just claim in his own behalf from pre­

senting that claim to the State. What we do w~nt to direct 

our attention to are these sub rosa appearances in behalf of a 

client for a fee~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: I understand. I think our 

objectives are the same but it is a question Cf trying to 

specifically arrive at them where we all face a difficultYo 

MR. CARPENTER~ Let me say this, if I may: As I 

said in our report to the State Bar Association - we don't 

claim any particular pride of authorship, we don't say that 

this is the last worde We knew that our work would be 

reviewed by the Legislature, it would be debated and discussed 

and probably amended, but we have done the best we could to 

present this matter to the Legislature so t hat when they get 

in committee or caucus or your commission can work this 

out the way you think Is sound. We looked on this more as 

the idea hand we hope you can improve it e 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: Well we appreciate that very 

much and I hope you understand that we are not asking these 

questions in any derogatory sensee It is an effort to 

clarify ite 
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MR. CARPENTER: And to improve it. That's what we 

want. 

ASSE)\IIBLYTJlAN FRANKLIN: I had several :6ther questions 

" along the same line. Another situation I thought of was a 

member of the Legislature who is a working man and who has an 

accident and applies for workmen's compensation, for example. 

Is there any possible application of the provisions of this 

section in a situation like that? 

MR. CARPENTER: Of course, there are no workmen's 

compensation claims against the State of New Jersey as such. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: That's correct, but it is a 

State agency. 

MR . CARPENTER: You mean if a man was in the 

Legislature and he was injured working for the State Highway 

Department could he assert his claim. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: Yes. 

MR. CARPENTER: Well I think it is pretty far remove d 

to say that any member of the Legislature is going to be ' in 

the position of working for the State Highway Department 

where he could be injured. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: Well, assume that he is working 

for a private employer and he presents a claim before the 

Workmen's Compensation Bureau, which Is a State agency. 

MR. CARPENTER: I wouldn't think that would have 

any application. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN : All right, sir. Now turning to 

the lawyers, and I suppose I am interested in this question 

as a lawyer myself, let me ask you this: Do you think that 
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this prohibition would apply or should apply to an attorney 

f i I ing a: _transfer inher i tance tax return wi th the Bureau? 
• 

MR& CARPENTER: For a privat~ client? No, I don't 

think it would. See, this was strictly aimed at appearing 

before them and asserting their claim because he is a Senator 

and asking a better break than somebody on the outside could 

get.. That's what we want to aim at. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRAN1{LIN: In other words, you would not 

construe the filing of a written tax return as an appearanc~ 

as set forth here in this section wh~re you say "No member of 

the Legislature shall either directly or indirectly appear .. " 

MR. CARPENTER: Appearo 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: Suppose then there is a difference 

of opinion between the Tax Bureau and the Attorney filing the 

return and he must appear before them, then the prohibition 

would apply at that point, I would presume. Now, do you think 

that the prohibition would apply to his partner appearing in 

connection with a difference between the Bureau 

MRo CARPENTER: I donUt think it should.. I think it 

should stop the Senator or Assemblyman from going in and 

asserting his power or authority as an officer of this State 

for getting a better break for his client than anybody on the 

outside could~ That is what you want to stoPa 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: I can understand your objective 

there. The reason, again, that I ask the question is because 

of the language of the prOVision which says that "No member 

shall either dir~ctly or indirectly appear .. " It seems to me 

that you might have a question -­
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MR. CARPENTER: A question as to what is indirect, is 

that what you mean? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: Yes, sir. That's right. 

MR. CARPENTER: Perhaps you could clarify that and 

say ushall appear". Strike out "directly or indirectly" 

and say "shall appearff, for after all it is the appearance 

that causes the trouble. For instance, suppose a Senator 

wanted to get a franchise from the Board of Public Utility 

Commission or some - not a Senator but some corporation did ­

and went to a Senator of some prominence or the Speaker of 

the House or somebody like that and he, because of his 

position, would go before . the Public Utility Board and have a 

better chance of getting it than anybody else. Perhaps one 

or two members of the Board might be coming up for confirmation 

or seeking appointment. That is the sort of thing you want to 

aim at. ~ I would say that if a Legislator had a client whose 

will had been drawn by him, of course he should be allowed 

to file the tax return and see it through the Bureau or have 

somebody else do it. But to say that he should,on~the other 

han~ have his services available to other lawyers and use his 

power and influence to throw his weight around to get something 

for the other lawyer that the lawyer couldn't get for himself 

or for his own client - that's what you want to stop. 

ASSE~illLYMAN FRANKLIN: One reason I was particularly 

interested in this question also, Mr. Carpenter, is that it 

is my understanding, under the prevailing interpretation 

of the Federal Statutes and Regulations, t~ which you refer, 

that a partner of a lawyer who Is a member of Congress or a 
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government official is not suppos~d to have any dealings 

with any federal bureau, including the filing of estate 

tax returns o 

• MR. CARPENTER: I haven't followed that through. I 

haven't looked that up. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: So, you see, there would be a 

fundamental difference in attitude then between your interpre­

tation and my understanding of the federal requiremento I 

know that I had a partner who recently received a federal 

appointment and had to sever completely any connections with 

the firm whatever because it was our understanding that we 

should not even file a federal estate tax return. 

MR. CARPENTER: It may be a regulation of the Department 

that I haven't~ thought to look up. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: So that your interpretation might 

suggest a possible difference between the prevailing federal 

interpretation. 

MR. CARPENTER: That may be. That may be. I haven't 

looked that one up to see how they do consider that in the 

federal tax work. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: I just have one other question 

and that is ~ one of the differences that bothers this 

Commission between the State legislative representatives and 

many employees and the federal situation is that the federal 

employees and members of congress are full-time pOSitions while 

the State legislative representative holds a part-time position 

and a good many State employees also are employed part-time 

in civilian activities, as it were. Now, do you think that 
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that basic difference might suggest any possible differences 

in the federal application and State application of conflict 

of interest regulations? 

MR0 CARPENTER: I do not • 
• 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: You do notG 

MRo CARPENTER~ I do not. 

MR. KEATING~ Mr. Carpenter J I would like to refer to 

section 3, with particular reference to the first ten or twelve 

words of that sectionG You have stressed the word ffappearff in 

reply to Assemblyman Franklin's questions. Now~ as I under~ 

stand it, you saw no objection to house counsel of a corpora­

tion of which a Legislator happened to be the president or 

a major official. You saw no objection to house counselor 

another officer of the corporation who happened to be a lawyer 

appearing in an action • 

• MR. CARPENTER: I think I would go further than that. 

I don't think that's my views. If the house counsel of a 

corporation is a member of the Legislatureg. I do not think 

he ought to appear for that corporation. 

MR. KEATING: Well then suppose that the Legislator 

happens to be the President of the corporation. 

MRo CARPENTER~ I don't think he should appear. 

MRo KEATING~ You think it is proper for the house 

counsel of a corporation to appear in that case? 

MRo CARPENTER~ I donVt think he should. I think they 

should 	employ somebody else. 

MR. KEATING~ Outside counsel? 

MRo CARPENTER~ Yesg sir. 
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MR. KEATINGg All right. Now,9 how do you feel about 

a partner in the firm of a Legislator7 

MR" CARPENTERg You are coming to a close one there .. 

I don't know myself what the answer is.. I know that in my 

own firm I wouldn't want a partner who was in the Legislature 

because I wouldn't want such a conflict of interest to exist. 

MR. KEATING~ Well,9 I can conceive of our larger firms 

in New Jersey where a member of the firm could be a Legislator 

and come in very little contact with some of the partners of 

that firm and yet you would bar any member of that. firm from 

running for the Legislature, according to what you have just 

said. 

MR. CARPENTERg No,9 1. wouldn't but I would say t.o him 

"while you are in the Legislature you practice law on your own". 

I wouldn't have him a member of the firm • 
• 

MRo KEATING~ Then he would have to leave the firm .. 

MRQ CARPENTERg I wouldnVt have a partner in my firm 

who was a member of the Legislature .. 

MR .. KEATING: All right.. Now I am getting back to what 

Senator a'Mara said, and 1 don't 1r.rant to be in a position of 

defending Senator O'Mara 9 I am merely raising questions as 

a point of informationo He made the flat statement here 

that a lawyer can hardly leave home in the morning and go 

down to his office and not have a conflict of interest if 

he happens to be a legislato ~ .. 

MHo CARPENTER~ Wel1~ put it another wayo What are 

the conflicts of interest that we are aiming at7 We are 

aiming at the type that affects only occasionally a member 
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of the Legislatureg I think that the great majority of the 

members of the Legislature wou l d nev er violate this law but 

there are occasionally -- I am talking now of past historY9 going 

back to the r?port of Roger Hinds -- occasionally in the past 

there have been instances where a member of the Legislature has 

traded 9 put it that waY 9 on his i nf luence as a member of the 

Legislatureo That is the sort of thing that has got to be 

stopped. 

MRo KEATINGg Well~pirevious witnesses have stressed 

that the undue influence does not necessarily have to be in 

the form of moneys it can be that itself -influenceo 

MR. CARPENTER~ What does the peddling and sale of 

influence amount to? It amounts to getting money for the Job~ 

doesnVt it? 

MRo KEAT.ING~ Youvre righto Correcto 

• 
MR~ CARPENTER~ And that is the sort of thing that 

should be stoppedo 

MR. KEATING~ That 1s what the Bar Association wants 

to shut the door on real1Y9 undue inf luenceo 

MRo CARPENTER~ ThatVs righto 

MRo KEATING~ Thank you v ery mucho 

MRo MARCIANTEg Mro Carpenter ,9 j us t as a matter of 

historical interest I notice here i n bill number 1 that this 

bill was adopted in December of 1956 wi t h one dissenting vote~ 

MRo CARPENTER ~ Tha t ts r lght t!> 

MR" MARCIANTE~ I 1' o t"~c e b i l l number 2 .,... \iTas that adopted 

at the same time? 

MR" CARPENTER ~ No 0 Tha t "\lI!as not drawn a t tha t time" 

That wa s drawn later at t he r eque s t of the As s ociation" They 
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passed a separate resolution and that was prepared in March 

of this year, I think~ and submitted to Senator Murray after 

the State Bar had approved both of them. 

MRo MA.RCIANTE~ Now p Mr. Carpenters I think you will 

agree with us or with anyone that there is apt to be an area 

of doubt as to what would be an ethical representation and 

what would not be an ethical representation by an attorney who 

is a member of the Legislature, as has been brought out here 

on more than one occasiono It is my belief~ and I think yours~ 

that there are specific instances where there is no question 

but that it would be unethical. 

MRe CARPENTER~ That's righte 

MRo MARCIANTE~ And that there are areas of doubt as 

to whether they are ethical or not ethical In other cases. 

Would you agree with me when I say that there "should be 

an agency of some kind that an attorney who is a member of 

the Legislature could consult as to whether he was representing 

a client ethically or whether he was not. In other words, 

what I am driving at is this - later on I think our State 

Federation of Labor spokesman here will present a proposal 

that "we set up some kind of ethical practices commi ttee 

for the Legislature and we feel that it has a contribution 

to mkke because of the fact that it would give someone an 

opportunity to be advised before they do something that they 

may be criticized for later. What would be your opinion of 

that kind of Commission? 
• 

MRe CARPENTER: Wel19 I will give you the advice that 

an old lawyer gave to me years ago when I was stUdying lawo 
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He said: "From t i me to time whi l e you pract ice law you will 

have questions arise in your own mind wha t to do in a given 

case or whether you shou l d t ake a cas e or no t H and he said~ 

"Always feel free to go tc an o : der l a'~llyer and talk it over 

wi th him and ask his ad'vice .. II NO'irJ you have in this State 

plenty of lavvyers to whom a Legislator can go and talk over 

the matter and get their advi c e as to whether or not it is 

proper, appropriate and ethical or legal for him to take a 

certain case or whether he ought to leave it aloneo Nows 

that's my answer to that .. 

MRo MARCIANTE~ You donVt think that a Commission could 

serve any usefu l purpose? 

MRo CARPENTER~ Of course it could but I don't think 

it is necessary .. 

MRo MARCIANTE~ You don 9 t think it is necessary .. 

MRo CARPENTER~ ThatUs right.. I donnt know of a lawyer 

in this State of any standing who would either decline to 

advise a man and wouldn~t do it free as charge$ if you asked 

his adviceo 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN g Mro Carpenter 9 I understand that 

it was your feeling that p~obably no par t ner of a law firm 

should serve a s a member of the Leg i s laturee 

MR., CARPENTER~ Thatlls my own viewo 

ASSEfJIBLYMAlIJ FRA.NKLIN ~ Yes.9 I nderstand 0 And I 

wanted to ask you again if y ou t hough t t he language of 

this section 3 would apply to a partner of a la\rJyeT' in the 

Legislature tvho appeared before a State agency o 
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MR .. CARPENTER~ As this is drawn now 9 I believe it 

would apply to a partner. 

ASSEfJIBLYMA.N FRANKL IN ~ Then I wond e r - aga in' I am jus t 

trying to find out the degree to which we are going. Would 

it apply to an associate in a firm~ do you think? In other 

words if a partner in a firm is a member of the Legislature~ 

do you think any associate in the firm also would be prohibited 

from appearing before any State agency? 

MRo CARPENTER: If he was appearing for the Senator or 

for the Legislator, then the Legislator would be appearing 

indirectly by his own paid employee. What is the difference 

anyhow, so far as the effect goes 9 provided the employee 

passes on to the member of this department or another department 

that I am appearing for Senator so-and-so and he wants to see 

this done. You don't want tha~ do you? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN~ I w~s thinking more of a case 

where he was appearing on firm business which perhaps had no 

relation to the work of the partner who was in the Legislature 

but I am thinking also, of course, that whatever the firm does, 

in a sense, is on behalf of each of the partners. Do you think 

it would apply to that case also? or should apply? 

MRG CARPENTER: Well, the Legislator would be getting 

his share of the fee, wouldn't he? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: Exactly~ as a member of the 

partnership. That is why I wondered if it was your opinion 

that the prohibition would also apply to associates • .. 

MR. CARPENTER~ I think so. I really thln.k that when 

you consider the interests of the State and the people of the 
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State and you want to see tha t everybody gets their fair 

and equal share 9 you have got to put a stop to that sort of 

thing and it is better to go too far than not far enough. 

We have had enough instances in the past of how the State has 

been pretty badly affected by some of these things and now 

that the matter is before the Legislature and your august 

Conunittee why not do the Job and do it :right and let the 

chips fall where they may, and do it in the public interest 

rather than in the interest of some fellow who comes down here 

to the Legislature for the purpose of trading on his positiono 

We have had that in the past. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANHLIN: Right. As I say.9 I think we 

are all in agreement on the general objective. There is no 

question about that. 

MRo CARPENTER~ I am not so sure ~ if I may interrupt 
• 

a minute - about the contention of Senator O'Mara that you 

wouldnVt be able to get good men in the Legislature. I think 

that is wholly unsound 9 for this reason: That is a reflection 

on all the good members of the Legislature~ men who are down 

here now who never do these things. After a119 it is only 

the occasional bird who comes down here and wants to trade 

on his position, sell influence and sell his services to 

the high bidder. The great multitude of men who want the 

honor of serving in the Legislature don't come down here 

for any other purpose except service and the fellow who 

wants to come down here to trade on his position~ sell 

influence for what he can get, you don~t want him in here 

anyhowtI 

35 

You are viewing a document archived at the New Jersey State Library.



ASSEMBL't'MAN FRAI\JKLIN ~ We 11 9 wha t I am t rying to do 

at the moment 12 J us t . art of cha rt in my own mind the extent 

of the prohibit ion wh i ch y ou th ink is proper and which the 
~ . 

Bar As ~ociation t hi nks Is propero Now 9 I would like to turn 

to a busines s en tityo I t hink it was y o r feel i ng earlier 

that ~ saY9 ~he off i cer of a co rpora t Ion who is a member of the 

Legis l atur e s hould not appear In c onnection with any State 

agency involvi ng t he c orporation = should not personally appear. 

Now g it seems t o me if t h i s proh i b it ion applies also to the 

partners of a law firm9 I wonder f you feel that the same 

prohlbltion 9 and for much the same reasons j would also apply 

to partners of a business entity or the officers of ~-

MRo CARPENTERg I don 't think thatt9 Mr~ Franklin, and 

this is the reasong The officer of a corporation who is in 

the Legislature is the one that I donUt think should be 

• allowed to appear in behalf of his corporation before an 

agency or a commission or whatnote Now j if he doesnUt appear 

on its behalf and somebody else appears for that corporation ­

it should have representation but it shouldn't be official 

rep r esentation p it shou l dn g t be a member of the Legislature 

appearing for ite I t i s t ru e tha t he may be a stockholder 

qof the corporatio s he may be an emp l oyee of 1 
+ 
"9 but the vice 

we want t o r each i s t he act ion of t he Leg i s l ator himselfe 

When somebody 0 t he o , tsi de 9 another officer or an outside 

counsel for the c r po r a tOo' a ppear s 9 the mat t er I sn't 

affected by t his o ff i ~ l a l repres entat i cno That is what we 

1J\!'an t to avo I d 0 

36 

You are viewing a document archived at the New Jersey State Library.



ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLINg How would you feel about a 

commercial partnership? Do you think the prohibition should 

apply to all partners in a business partnership? 

MRo CARPENTER~ Let that partnership employ counsel 

outside of the intimate family. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN~ I wasn't thinking of the employ­

ment of counsel so much as perhaps an appearance as a witness 

in a proceeding involving the corporation. 

MRe CARPENTERg Oh~ that wouldn't be affectedo Of 

course, he should appear as a witnesso But you see what you 

have got to reach in a bill like this is that one thing that 

creates the conflict of interest and that is the representatIve 

of the State, on the one handa being at the same time the 

representative of the claimant for whatever it wants, whether 
l" 

it is a 	 money claim or whether it is for a franchise or some 

other benefIt ~ that is the thing you want to reach. 

ASSEfJillLYfv1AN FRANKLINg Well ~ my question again goes 

to section 3 where you say uNo member of the Legislature 

shall either directly or indirectly appearo" and I wondered 

if you had a business partnership and o~e of the partners 

is a member of the Legislature. whether in view of that 

language another partner of the business entity making an 

appearance on behalf of the partnership might not fall 

within 	the prohibitlono 

MRo CARPENTER~ Wells if you cons ider the partnership 

as a business entity~ as y u just said ~= 

ASSEMBL~f.MAN FRANKLINg Yes~ a business partnership. 

MR. CARPENTER~ =~ then the Legislator ought not 
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appear for that entity but that entity could have the cl~im 

presented by somebody else. You get away then from the 

,.. 	 surreptitious influences if you wants and ~the appearance is 

made not by th~ member of the Legislator but by the entity• 
through somebody els~. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLINg Wells the question I am raising s 

you see$ is a partnership thats for example~ has a tax matter 

and ; to tontest a tax matter, of course, they must appeare 

just wondered how much difference there is between having 

another member of the partnership enter the appearance. All 

the partners share from the profits of the partnershIp, just 

as in the case of a law firm. I just wonder what the 

difference is between having another partner in a commercial 

business enter the appearance before a State agency and 

another partner in a law firm entering an appearance on behalf 

of a client ttat has no relation to the business of a pa,rtner 

in the law firm who is in the Legislature. 

MRo CARPENTERg Well, those things are difficult. 

MRo KEATING~ Mr. Carpenter, you have been so frank 

and forthright in your replies that I am tempted to ask you 

a question that has bothered me for a long time as a non-lawyer. 

MR. CARPENTERg If I can help you g I am at your service. 

MR" KEATING ~ I hav e a I ways had the fee 1ing tha t, if I 

had a lawyer representing me and I felt that he was doing 

something that was improper or unethica1 9 before I took 

positive action against him I could go to the Bar Association 

and get some advice about my qualmso Now g previous witnesses 

have pretty much impressed on me that all these rascals you 
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are aiming at are lawyerse As lawyers, what has the Bar 

ASsociation done in the past with reference to their 

iniquitous activities? Have they taken any positive action7 

MR. CARPENTER: I cangt think of a single one. Nor 

can I think of a single one where the Senate of this State 

has ever kicked out a Senator who has been proven to have done 

some of the things we are speaking of. 

MR. KEATING~ That has been pretty well documented in 

previous hearings:alsoo My question is~ Why hasnUt the Bar 

Association done something about it and are these bills the 

answer to my question ~ that the Bar Association has suddenly 

become aware of the necessity for legislation to control their 

own memberso 

MR. CARPENTER: You must remember, sir, that there is 

• 	 no clear-cut law on the books of this State affecting that 

situation. I have here copies of the New Jersey Statutes 

that relate to officers of municipalities or counties, 

employees of institutions of this State, members of the Boards 

of Freeholders~ hht cyou have never passed a law - I" speak now 

of the Legislature - relating to me~bers of the Legislature 

and what they can and cannot do or employees of the State or 

agencies of the State as to what they can or cannot doo The 

courts have had to rely on the common lawo As recently as 

the oplnibn: of Judge Hu~hes, filed September 6, in the Hoffman 

Case, and going back to the Burlington Bridge Case which 

affected a former Senator, they have found law that applies 

where there has been an indictment or some other litigation. 

But the State Bar, because of some of these things, has 
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finally come around to the view - and 1 think we are better 

organized in the State Bar now than we were years ago ­

we have come around to the realization that in the public 

interest there should be a law that affects these things 

and put a stop to some of the things that we all know have 

existed in the paste 

MR. KEAT[NG: But some of these malpractices have been 

so gross and apparent that I canVt understand why the Bar 

Association hasngt taken a positive stand. You certainly 

didn't need a law to guide the Bar Association on some of 

the matters that have been brought before this Commissiono 

MRo CARPENTER: You're righto But since the Constitution 

provides that the Senators and the members of the House are 

the judges of their own members~ they had the first crack at 
• 

it where they have the evidence. The Bar Association is 

loathe to act until they have the evidence presented to themo 

It has never been presented t~ themo I am sure of that, or 

they would have acted~ It has never been presented to the 

Supreme Court or it would have actedo The reflection that 

exists against the State Bar for not moving is also a re­

flection against the Court because when these things came 

out publicly the Court never issued an order to show causeo 

That is the reason why we need a statuteo 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN ~ Mr6 Carpenter, I hope you don~t 

mind all these questionso .. 

MR. CARPENTER: I am delighted to have themo In facti 

if 1 can be of any help that is what I am here foro 
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ASSEMBLY!JIAN FRANKLIN: I wondered if I could turn 

to bill number 2, section Ao 

MR. CARPENTER: Yes, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: I notice that the prohIbition 

there in effect says that no officer or employee of a 

State agency or legislative employee, nor firm or association 

of which such person is a member, nor corporation of which 

such person is an officer or director, or of which five 

percent or more of the stock is owned or controlled directly 

or indirectly by said persons, shall sell goods, etco having 

an aggregate value in excess of $25.00 per annum to any 

person, firm, corporation or association which is annually 

licensed to do business or is regulated by a State agency& 

Now, is it your feeling that that prohibition would 

prevent any firm or any such corporation that falls withIn 

this section from doing business, for example, with an 

insurance company or a bank, a State bank, or utility or 

an insurance broker or real estate broker or an attorney or 

other persons and agencies all of which are licensed to 

some extent and regulated by the State? Again I am trying 

to find out the extent of the application of the proposed 

bill. 

MR. CARPENTER: Well, you can see, I think, what we 

are aiming at thereo It's to stop - ­

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: You see the problem I am 

raising. In view of the fact that so much commercial 

enterprise is either licensed or regulated by the State 

today, such a broad prohibition raises a problem, I think. 

.. 
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MR. CARPENTER~ Perhaps that would be improved by 

saying "except on public bidding ff 
• Where you get a public 

advertisement and award to the lowest bidder, then you are 

all righto 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: I still have one question, though, 

on that and that is, what about a business regulated by the 

State? Take an insurance broker who is licensed by the Statee 

Of course, he doesn't in his business - if he is going to 

have his office painted, for example, he probably doesn't 

let bids in accordance with the statutes, and yet a corporation 

in which a member of the Legislature had a five percent stock 

interest presumably under this couldnVt do any business with 

him of any substantial nature~ if the prohIbition applies to 

such a situation. 

MRo CARPENTER~ HavenVt we had instances in the 

past where members of the Legislature or State employees 

have thrown vast insurance to their own particular agency 

without competitive bidding? That is the sort of thing you 

have got to aim at hereo 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN~ I am not questioning the 

validity of this section at all; I am trying to determine 

the extent of ito 

MR. CARPENTER: Well, you have got to cons i der ' jn a 

sense what has happened in the past and put up a bar so 

that it won't happen againo Somebody is going to get a 

little hurt by it but in the public interest we are all 

going to be better offo We have had those instances in 

the past and we want to avoid themo 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: One of the reasons I am as~ing 

so many questions about the extent of the bill - and I might 

, 	 ask you to comment on this point - is that, as I said before, 

one of the things that has bothered the Commission is your 

federal employees are on a full-time basis. A Congressman, 

as you pointed out earli~r, has a salary of $22,500 a year 

with an expense account of $2500, making a total of $25,000. 

While that isn't much, most of them operate on a full-time 

basis, But many of your State legislative representatives 

and employees -- certainly your State representatives, most 

of them, couldn't on the basis of a $5,000 a year salary do 

that as a full-time job. So they are engaged in private 

activIties and our problem is) I SUPpOSE; one of determining 

the extent to which we can confine their business activities, 

knowing that most commercial activities today in one way or 

another are regulated or touched upon by the State government. 

I just wondered if you would comment on that. 

MR. CARPENTER: Put it this way~· If these acts of 

Congress are right and they have stood on the books for 90 

years and nobody that 1 know of has ever tried to repeal 

them, - and Congress wasn't a full-time job back there 90 

years ago and it is only since the First World War that we 

have had these sessions of Congress that last a whore year ­

if they are right as to a full-time employee of the State, 

a full-time officeholder, they are also right as to the 
• 

part-time employee. It is a matter of right and wrong here, 

• 	 It Is not a matter of how a man is · somewhat affected by 
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it. If he is barred because of the public interest where ~ he 

is a full-time employee, he ought to be barred by the same 

interest if he is a part-time employee. There can't be any 

compromise here between the State interest whether a man is 

working full time or part timeo 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: One of our problems as we see it, 

and this was an aspect of the whole problem that was very 

carefully considered by the New York Legislative Commission 

studying conflicts of interest and by Governor Dewey in 

New York 

MR. CARPENTER: I know that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: -- was of course that if you 

set up the area of your prohibition on a very broad scale 

in these days where State government touches a great many or 

practically all commercial activity, commercial and pro­

fessional activity, if you make it too broad then your problem 

is where to find competent people who will be in a position 

where they will not transgress the broad area of prohibition 

that you have outlined. And our problem is made more acute, 

I suppose, by the fact that when you are operating in State 

government you are operating within a narrowly limited 

territory and your business or your profession conducted in 

the State is much more apt to direttly ' impinge ypon some 

State regulation or activity than might be the case with 

• the federal 	government, for example, say 20 or 30 years ago, 

• 	 and you are operating your business on the local levelo I 

just wondered if you would comment on thato I know it is 

a long, lengthy, rambling question. 
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MR. CARPENTER: Well, as far as federal regulations 

or state regulations go now, I think there are far more in 

the federal government than there are in the State. You can't 

turn around without having to see what the federal regulations 

may be on any matter - taxations. You canVt even die now with­

out being affected by themo And the State is just about as 

broad .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: Of course. Again I want to get 

back to this one other thing.. I am sorry to ask you so many 

questions but I am very interested .. 

MR. CARPENTER: That is what I am here for and I am 

glad to answer themo 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: It seems to me that one of the 

factors that we have to consider - and it is Just a factor, 

one of the things you weigh - is that there Is a great deal 

of federal regulation, of course" but your federal people 

are on a full~time basis and so they are not partly dependent 

upon commercial or professional activity which would impinge 

upon the federal regulation. 

MR. CARPENTER: I don~t, personally, see any difference 

between the full-time man and the part-time man. I think 

if we are going to say a thing is right or wrong it doesn't 

matter if he works five days a year or 365 days a year. The 

• 	 thing is either right or wrong. If it is wrong, it hits 

both of them .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ·FRANKLIN: Well, do you think that under 

the rather broad area of prohibition that I think we have 
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outlined this morning - is it your feeling that there will 

be sufficient room to secure competent people for State , 
governmental and legislative Jobs. 

MR. CARPENTER: I don't think there is any question 

about it. I think the contention that good men won't serve 

in the legislature if you pass these laws is a reflection on 

the people of this State. And the reason for that is very 

simple. It is only one man or two men, a few men in a long 

period of years that would be affected by these laws. The 

great majority of men in this legislature - let's say that 

all of them today would not be affected by this, but you want 

to stop some things that have gone on in the past. I am 

not aiming this at anybody, neither is the Bar Association. 

We want a code of law laid down that will stop some things 

that have gone on in the past. You take the period that 

Roger Hind referred to when Governor Edison was Governoro 

Only a very few people were affected by that and that was at 

a time when conditions were really very bad. Only a few 

members of the legislature. And ninety-nine out of a hundred 

men who come down to the legislature come because of one 

thing - they want to serve, serve the interests of the State; 

number two, they want the honor involved; number three j some 

of them, take a lawyer, want to become better known and it is 

because he becomes better known that he has private clients 

come to him and he increases his practice. You don't want 

him to increase his practice limited almost exclusively to 

representing people who want to get something from the 

State that they are not entitled to. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: Well, isn't it so, to be 

specific about it, that under the provisions of section 3 , 
of bill number I, it would be my understanding, as you 

interpreted t it, /for us this morning, that probably most 
l 

attorneys presently in the legislature who are partners in 

firms should not continue either as partners in the firm or 

to serve in the legislature., So I think it would affect an 

area there o 

MR 9 CARPENTER: We 11" I speak for my own firm. I don g't 

pretend to speak for what some other law firm would doo But 

I wouldnit want in my firm a man who was a member of the 

legislature, while he was in the legislature- - before and 

after, okeh. I wouldnRt want to have our firm put in a 

position where anybody could say to us - you are taking 

advantage of the fact that you have a partner who is in ~ the 

legislature and that firm is getting something that no other 

firm could get - I donUt like that. 

MRe MARCIANTE: So far as your number 1 bill is 

concerned, that applies to legislators j it seems to me that we 

could ve~ easily solve r ~ the whole problem could be 

solved by not electing la-wyers to the legislature" Is that 

right? 

MR. CARPENTER: No" NOe ThatUs not so at allo I 

think the vast majority of lawyers -­

.. MR. MARCIANTE: Then your n~mber 2 bill would take 

care of the others.,• 

MR. CARPENTER: Number 2 would take care of them but 

I think the vast number of lawyers are perfectly honorable 
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and reputable. It is the occasional man who comes down and 

takes advantage of the position, sells influence and so fortho, 
MR. MARCIANTE~ Far be it from me to try to impugn the 

• honesty of any lawyer. But isn't it a fact that if this bill 

were enacted -- What is your opinion? Do you think fewer 

lawyers would aspire to become legislators or not? 

MR. CARPENTER: I donUt think it would affect them 

a particleo 

MR. ~~RCIANTE: You must understand I am for less of 

them in the legislature at the risk of getting in wrong with 

the lawyers' uniono 

MRo CARPENTER: Then, Mro Marciante, you certainly are 

for this bill, aren't you1 Noo I donUt think for a minute 
I 	

that any honorable man would be deterred from coming down to 

the legislature if you pass these billse I do think that the 

fellow who wants to come down here for the purpose of tradIng 

on his position won't come downo You don't want him anyhow 0 

MRo YAUCH: I realize the sense in which Mr. Carpenter 

stated it but I wouldnVt want to see get in this record any 

final conclusion by any member of this Commission . and counse1 9 

with respect to this very important subject, so I donVt think 

Mr. Carpenter was serious when he said "Then you are in favor 

of this bill number 1" to Mr. Marciante. 

MR. CARPENTER: Oh, noo I just couldnnt resist that 

opportunity. 

SENATOR MURRAY: Counsel, I am operating under the• 

disadvantage of the failure of the Pennsylvania Railroad to 

run on time this morning and consequently I have some questions 
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here which~ if th ey have a lr eady been an swered in the record, 

I wish you woul d immed i a t ely Inform me s o as not to cover the 

ground again. 

With respect to the general na "u r e of bill NO e l,~ 

Counsell o r» I have encounte r ed c on s iderable confusion in the 

minds of many who are i nt er ested in our s t udy as to whether or 

not this bill is t o estab l i s h s tandards of c onduct for apparent 

or real conflicts of int~rest8 And I would 1ik~ to take, 

section by section, some examples and hav~ your thinking on iti 

if you havenUt already given ito 

MRo CARPENTER~ All righto 

SENATOR MURRAY~ For example» in bil l number 19 section 

number 19 what is your thinking where a man s tands for the 

legislature already in possession of some interest which, as 

I gather9 section 1 respecting contrac t s with the State would 
• 

prohibit only after or during his term of officeo Suppose he 

already has the interest when he stands for term of office., 

What is your s u gge ::i t i on l 

MR., CA.RPENTER~ How can there be any conflict of 

interest until a man becomes a member of the legislature? 

SENATOR MURRAYg We ~1 9 t hatV s my ques t iono He has the 

interesto He runs for off i c e., He is electedo I am wonder~ 

ing whether section 1 would cover that., It appears to me to 

cover it only for something tha t arises during his term or 

two yea r s aftero 

Tv1R 0 CARPENTER. ~ Th a t u~ !' i ght 0 Dur ing h i ~ te rm of 

• 
office or any c on t r aci au t hor i zed by l aw pa ssed during the 

te rm for whIch he sha l l have been e lectedo 
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MR. YAUCH~ Mr. Carpenter, the Chairman's question 

has to do with a situation, letVs saY9 where John Doe has 

, an interest 

he has held 

in X Corporation and 

that interest during 

then five years later,after 

that time9 he becomes a member 

of the Senate or the Assembly. Would this section apply in 

that situation? Is that the question, Mr. Chairman? 

SENATOR MURRAY~ Yes. 

MR. CARPENTER~ Not at allo 

SENATOR MURRAY~ It would not applyo 

MR. CARPENTER: N0 9 I don't think it would at all 

because there wouldnVt be a conflict of interest. You would 

have a status that was in existence when he became a member 

of the legislatureo 

• 

• 

SENATOR MURRAY~ What about a renewal of a contract 

constantly in existence, saY9 for ten or fifteen years 

preceding? 

MRo CARPENTER~ I don't think that very question -

the way it's put, I don't think I can answer it. It depends 

on the facts and circumstances 9 I should say. 

SENATOR MURRAYg What I have in mind, without pin­

pointing any specific names or corporations, is the obvious 

practice in many instances of renewing contracts with the 

State, let us say with utility corporatlons g to give an 

examples or transportation corporationso I am wondering 

on the basis of service and perhaps even on a bid basis, 

• 
I donVt know 9 but what would 

such a corporation stood for 

happen if 

elections 

the president of 

under paragraph 1, 

and this contract came up for renewal? 
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MRo CARPENTER~ I don ' '" t h i nk It would apply unless 

he owned more than two pe rc ent of the stock of the corporation. 

F That wou l d be ve ry un :i kely , wo d i t not? 

• 
SENATOR MURRA. g 1;[e l " 9 I am assuming t ha t he does own 

more than two perc en to 

MRo CARPENTER~ I t hink y ou c ou l d make that two percent 

five or t en percents s omething li ke t ha t g but the purpose of 

that is to exclude t he very thing you have in mindo 

SENATOR MURRAY ~ I am wondering what the conflict of 

interest would be in such a caseo WouldnOt it be covered 

by your number two paragraph in bill 19 that he would simply 

disclose it and no t vote on i _,if .it required a voteo 

MRo CARPENTER~ That~ I think, would answer the 

purposeo 

SENATOR MURRAyg And then a third aspect9 Counsellor ; -
• 

there are innumerable situa t ions s as I am sure you know 9 

where literal l y thousands of dollars worth of c ontracts 

are let by t he State and the on l y contact which a legislator 

may be said to have is when he votes for the appropriations 

b1119 because the a c t ua l negot ia tion of and letting of these 

contracts are departmenta l obligationso What is your 

feeling as to the coverage of paragraphs 1 and 2 in such 

instances 9 assuming that John Doe 9 a legislator g has a 

ten perc ent interest i n ~ ome poration which duly negotiates 

or bids for a c on t rac t wi t h a depa rtment9 no vote being 

taken? 
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MR. CARPENTER~ I wot.ld think if his only contact 

with it was voting for the appropriation and he didn't 

, have anything to do with the negotiation, it would not be 

effective. 

SENATOR MURRAY~ It would not be effective. 

MR. CARPENTER~ NOG 

SENATOR MURRAY~ I have als o a with respect to bill 

number 1, paragraph 3, a few questionse One of our members 

since my arrival has 9 I think, briefly touched upon this but 

I would like for my own guidance to get your specific answer. 

Under this paragraph 39 would it or would it not be an 

exclusion for a lawyer in a perfectly routine situation, 

where, perhaps in a testamentary way, he has been nominated 

as lawyer for an estate, to appear before the estate tax 

division1 What would he do? 
• 

MR. CARPENTER~ Well, of courses it would be a ve~ 

simple matter for him to comply with this law by having 

somebody else take care of that matter for him before the 

Department. That is one way of doing ito What you are 

aiming at is not that case which is after all a very 

occasional case. 

ASSE~ffiLYV~N FRANKLIN~ Excuse me, MrD Carpentere 

Wouldn't he be appearing indirectly if he had someone else 

appear for him? 

MR. CARPENTER: I don't think so. I don't think so. 

SENATOR ~lliRRAY~ What about his obligation under 
• 

the testamentary diiection? For example, = Pers onally, 
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don't practice in New Jersey so it doesn't affect me but ~ 

in New Yorkg frequently~ it has been my experience personally 

to be nominated and directed in the will to be the attorney 

or perhaps to be executor and attorney& What would occur in 

a similar situation in New Jerseys in your opinion? 

MR. CARPENTER: There is no question~ I think, about 

the fact whether you may be appointed as attorney and executor 

in a will.You still have the perfect right to employ outside 

aid. 

SENATOR MURRAY: But is there aconflict of interest 

there? 

MR. CARPENTER: I wouldn't think so because in that 

event if you are in the legislature and you have this personal 

matter coming before a department or agency~ nothing in the 

world could prevent you from saying, "I'll step aside and have 

no conflict of interest. I'll employ somebody else to take 

care of this particular matter." That would be for the client, 

not for you. 

SENATOR MURRAY: But what would the conflict of interest 

be if I didn't step asideJ I don't see any conflict of 

interest, I must confess, in the normal situation. I could 

see it in an abnormal one but in a normal routine situation 

what would the conflict of interest be? 

MRo CARPENTER~ The only conflict of interest is where 

you, as representative of that client~ - you may not like the 

• 	 way I state this but this is the way it occurs to me - you 

would go around throwing your weight around and say to the 

agency, "You'll either reduce this tax to what I say or I'll 
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put the boots to you when y ou r appointment comes up in the 

legislature" - somethIng like thate 

,. SENATOR MURRAY ~ Wel1$ I would c er t ainly agree with 

your definition the : e but in t he norma l routine 9 don't you 

agree g there wou ld pro bab l y no t be a c onfl ic t of interest? 

MRo CARPENTER~ Yes 9 I cer t ainly dOe 

SENATOR MURRAY~ But I wou ld agree with your defInition, 

however, if that oc c u r ~~d. I direct a simIlar question with 

respec t t o the Pub l i c Uti l it ie s Commission ~ appearing before 

the Public Uti li ties Commission or the Alcoholic Beverage 

Commissiono Again, would not such a conflict of interest, 

which you at this moment described and to which I fully 

agree, would not that be obviously rare? What about the 

routine situations? 

MRo CARPENTER~ hJ'e l1 g you are getting into a ticklish 

area thereo I think what the bill ought to do - it is a 

little difficult to phrase iti of course - is to stop 

legislators from taking emp l oyment before these agencies, 

not in the routine case but for the pur pose of using and 

selling their inf luenc e t o get f o r a client that which he 

cou l dn't get exc ept f or .ha t inf l uenc 80 Nows that is the 

sort of thing .. 

SENATOR MURRA.Y~ Would you care to comment t-Ji th 

respec t to the postur e o f a.ny le g i s lato r 'rJh o might also 

re pr es en t in an of f i c i a l capa Ity a local government up to, 

letUs say, the c ounty leve l , and a s suc h representative 

a p pea r bef o r e the Pub 1 i Ut i 1 i t :i. e s Comm i s s i on ~'J 0 u 1 d t ha t0 

involve a onf l i c t i your op i nion? 
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MR o CA.HPENTER ~ I do Vt th i nk s Oo 

SENATOR MURR~Yo You d o not t hink sO o 

,.. MR o CARPENTERg 1 don Vt ee any conf lict of interest 

becaus e the par t y 1 0:> no" the l egi..:l a ~ or 9 i t i s t he munici= 
• 

pa 1 i t y D 

SENA 'OR IvruRRA ~ ~ Tha t 1-_, . h a t 1. was anxious to heare 

Along the s ame l i ne ~D wha t 1 your fe e l i ng wi th respect to 

a magistra t e? 

MR" CARPENTER~ In what way? 

SENATOR MURRAy g In th i s c onflict of interest bIll, 

I believe i t i s yo u r sec ond bi l l where you are talking about 

employees of the State s wO" d you f eel that a municipal 

magistrate would be covered by that definition? 

MR~ CARPENTER ~ A mun ic ipal magistrate by Supreme 

Court rule cannot prac t ic e in hi s own countY9 you knowo 
" 

SEN.A.TOR MlJRRAY'~ Bu t what abou t the appearance before 

the va r ious boards and whatnot of the State? 

fvlR .. CA..RPENTER ~ I see no objec ti on to it,9 myself .. 

SENATOR MURRAY~ Di d y ou say t hat by Supreme Court 

ru l e a mun i cipa l rna g ·os t r ate c a nn t pr act i c e in his otm 

county? 

MRo CARPENTER g I may hav e missta t ed t ha t . There is 

a Sup r eme Court ' I e on t ha t s ub j e and ... ...,I", 

SENATOR MlJRMYo Th e r e ffi 'i,:,t be some marvelous loopholes 

involved in t ha t e 

MR o CARPENTER.~ = = and ~.- th i k ,9 i f I r eca l l c orrectlys 

that no emplcyee of a magist~ate or t h e mag i s t ra t e hims elf 

cannot appea be r r e any other ma gistra te 9 s c ourt in the 
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same county. I guess that's the way it goeso 

MRo YAUCH: Or in connection with any business of 

the city, too, possibly~ 

MR. CARPENTER~ Well, I don~t know about that. 
eo. 

SENATOR MURRAY: I felt certain that there must have 

been . a narrower def lni t ion. 

MRo CARPENTER~ There is a rule on it and I think I 

stated 	it correctly the last time. 

SENATOR MURRAY: Yes. 

MRe CARPENTER: But you know the judges of our courts 

can't practice law anymore. They put a stop to that. It 

used to be that Common Pleas judges could practice law. They 

can't anymore. 

SENATOR MURRAY: We have received some inquiries about 

the conflicts of interest in that area, and I was happy to 

have your opinion on it. Then we have always been in receipt 

of. inquiries from members of the general public as to 

whether or not the Bar Association's attitude was one 

primarily emphasizing attention to the legal profession or 

whether you were broadening your concern to other professions, 

such as medical, etc. 

MR .. CARPENTER~ This bill~ as 1r.Je have drafted it, 

applies to anybody at all whether it is a businessman, an 

architect, a vetermarian or a lawyer. We werenVt sufficiently 

narrow-minded to direct it only to our own class, you know. 

SENATOR MURRAY~ In paragraph number 59 Counsel1or~ 
• 

of your bill number 19 would you care to comment as to your 

feeling on the constitutionality of that paragraph g par= 

ticularly the disqualification clauseo 
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different names or designations or a county chairman of 

any political party. Is that what you mean? 

.' SENATOR MURRAY~ No. I knolN that "party officer" 

was defined, but the word "po l itical" itself9 as I recall, 

is employed in terms of conflict or in terms of advantage. 

I am trying to find the exact clause and I am unable to do so 

at the moment. 

MR. CARPENTER~ Well 1fpolitical party~U is a pretty 

well-known designation. I think we all know what a political 

party is. 

SENATOR MURRAY: I will find it in a moment g Counsellor. 

My recollection is that it was something with respect to 

political benefit. It was an adjective and it was not within 

the statutory definition~ as I recall, and I wondered how 

that might be controlled in terms of enforcement. That is in 

section 7~ "No officer or employee of a state agency or 

legislative employee shall accept employment or engage in 

any business j profession or political activity which will 

require him to disclose confidential information" etc. 

Now, would you assume the definision of «political activity" 

there to encompass membership on campaign committees, speakers9 

bureau.s - .... 

MRo CARPENTER: Absolutely. The thing is that this 

ought to apply to any and everybody. 

SENATOR MURRAY~ Not Jus t party officers -.." 

MRo CARPENTERg Any organizat ion that required a member 

of the legislature to disclose confidential information so 

that somebody else can trade on it ought to be put a stop to. 
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I don't care how broadly you define it. It is to stop the 

giving away or disclosing of confidential information gained 

by reason of an official position or employment to further the 

personal advantage of the legislator who may reveal confidential 

information. 

SENATOR MURRAY: Or the political party to which he 

may belong. 

MR. CARPENTER: That's right, or anybody, church, 

political party, anybody, any' organizationo 

SENATOR MURRAY: Speaking again on the political sphere 1 

that would, I would assume from your very broad definitioni 

almost exclude political activity, other than voting, on the 

part of those who in their ordinary course within state 

employment had information that was of a political natureo 

MR. CARPENTER: It says that the vice is disclosing 

confidential information to further personal interest,
• 

whether business, professional or politicalo What are we 

aiming at here? We are aiming at those situations where a 

member of the legislature learns that the State Highway Depart~ 

ment is going to build a road from here to thereo It is 

going to be the shortest direct routeo And then he goes out 

and trades on that confidential information, buys up lands 

and turns around and sells them to the State at a big priceo 

Now, that has gone on in the past and that is the sort of 

thing that should be put a stop tOe Why? Because it affects 

directly the public purse, feathers the nest of the fellow 

who gets the confidential information and uses it for his 
• 

own political advantageo That has happened in the pasto 
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SENATOR MURRAY~ There have been complaints made, 

and I have no knowledge of the truth or accuracy of them, 
.. 

but with respect to activities in Civil Service, and I am 

.. wondering whether or not they fall under this category - a 

reclassification program - and I assume these complai~ have 

been constant for many years, regardless of political partyo 

But in certain areas it is claimed that, in order to freeze in 

members of one or another political party, reclassification 

information of an accurate nature permitting it to be done, 

etc o , is placed at the disposal of those involved o I am 

wondering if this be true or if it be possible, if that 

wouldn't fall also in your definition of exclusiono 

MRo CARPENTER: I am not aware of that situation at all, 

but I think our main thought was directed toward this 

• personally trading on confidential information and passing 

it on to friends to buy up lands in advance of a public 

improvement and capitalize on ito NOw, if thatvs a vice, why 

then the giving away of any other confidential information 

a legislator gets for his own personal advantage should be 

stopped, no matter whether it affects employment, the public 

purse, or whato 

SENATOR MURRAY: I suppose the root of it is the 

definition of "confidential informationo n 

MRo CARPENTER: That's righto The root of it is 

not necessarily confidential information; it's because a 

• 
legislator gets confidential information and then, if hews 

of that stripe, he can trade on ito NOw, that ought not to 

be allowed, whether it affects the Highway Department, or 
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the Public Utility Department» or the Alcoholic Beverage 

Department, or what not. 

SENATOR MURRAY~ Well, the section to which I refer 
.. 

did not encompass legislators~ It was rather an employee or 

officer of the State, excluding legislators, because I donut 

know whether legislators in their routine would have access 

to confidential information on a constant basis~ 

MR. CARPENTER: I donvt know what they would have but 

itls funny how sometimes in the past they have bought 

properties that later the State wants,. and they get quite a 

profit out of themo How it happens, I donvt know o People can 

draw their own inferences - and do o Is it right? Nobody 

is going to contend ito 

SENATOR MURRAY: Have you had any complaints before the 

Ethics Committee of the state Bar with respect to a lawyer-

legislator in conflict of interest situations7• 

MR. CARPENTER: I wouldnvt knowo I have never served 

on an Ethics Committee~ But not to my knowledge; lUll answer 

you that wayo 
! 

SENATOR MURRAY: Are there any further questions9I 

gentlemen? 

MRo YAUCH: I have a fewo 

Mr~ Carpenter, I am certain that the reason for this 

extended questioning of you is because 9 without any attempt 

at flattery, we feel that you are a good source of information 

which may be helpful in this very difficult field o I take 

it from what I have heard you say here this morning that, in 

certain particulars, perhaps in an attempt to pass this bill 

so that it would produce the results you had in mind, the 
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language may be too broad o Am I correct in stating that that 

was said by you7 

MHo CARPENTER: Well, I didnyt put it in Just that way 
• 

but I said 	that this was the best Job our Committee could do, 

• 	 that we thought it was the ideal; we recognize itHs the last 

word, and we recognize that it can be improved If itgs tooo 

broad, it ought to be narrowed o If itus not broad enough, it 

ought to be widened o We have done the best job we cano We 

have put it in your laps~ and we hope that you can resolve this 

in the way that we wanted to resolve it, namely, solely in the 

public interesto 

MR& YAUCH: In view of the questions and the conversation 

back and forth here this morning, are there any items that 

suggest themselves to you, if you were to draft these bills 

over again, that you might treat a little differently? 

• 	 Iv1R& CARPENTER: No, I don ll t think I wouldo I think 

I would leave this up to the Commission here, knowing perfectly 

well that when they get done with it, it will be a good job 

because they will have the benefit of all the help that I 

have been able to give them, and Senator ORMara, who is a 

good friend of mine, and everybody else I think heRs wronga 

in some thingso He undoubtedly thinks IUm wrong in some 

thingso Thatus what makes a horse race 0 

SENATOR MURRAY~ Conflict of interest, isnRt it? 

Iv1Ro CARPENTER~ Yeso Not conflict of interest, no, 

... it's a conflict in viewo 

SE~~TOR MURRAY~ May I ask, Counsel, did you cover 

with Counsellor Carpenter the question of the advisability 
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of some sort of a state body to which problems would be 

referred before they arose? 

MFL YAUCH: yes, that question was asked by one of 

the members of the Cbmmissiono 

MRo CARPENTER: And I told them that I was advised 

years ago by an old lawyer that, whenever I had any doubt 

about how to do a job or whether I ought to take a case or 

whether I ought to do this or that, I should go and talk 

to some older man and get his advice and then you would 

keep pretty straight. 

MRo MARCIANTE: Except that the older fellow wouldnvt 

have any official status. 

MR. CARPENTER: No, but he would be wholly disinterested 

and would give the best advice he could o 

MR. MARCIANTE~ My feeling is, and we may be perfectly 
, 

wrong too, you know, that if h. had that kind of body to 

advise him he would have an official word as to whether he 

were within his province or noto 

MR. CARPENTER: Well, you know, if you had an official 

body like that ~ Number One, you got to pay them - you have 

to pay them adequate compensation-­

SENATOR MURRAY~ Well, that would not necessarily be sOo 

MRo CARPENTER: If they were not paid, we would run into 

such things as political favoritism, friendships, and giving 

advice that would just, after all, be an OoK~ for a fellow 

to go ahead and do what he wanted - I donut knowo 

MRo MARCIANTE: Well, Counsellor, you are not searching 
• 

for the millenium, are you? 

MR~ CARPENTER: What's that? 
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MRe MARCIANTE: We are not searching for the milleniume 

We are just trying to correct a conditiono 

MR. CARPENTER: Thatvs righto 

• MR. YAUCH~ 	 Mr. Carpenter, to put the question 

• 	 directly that I am sure the Chairman had in mind and Mro 

Marciante: Would you favor dealing with the problem that has 

been assigned to this commission - the adoption by the Legis­

lature of a code of ethics, and I am not excluding any other 

remedy, but would you favor the ad~tion of a code of ethics 

such as you know has been done over in New York state? 

l\J1R o CARPENTER ~ We 11, I can 9 t he lp bu t remembe r tha t 

Moses laid down a code of ethics a good many thousand years 

ago and you still pass laws to prohibit some of the things 

that are referred to in thato It"s a good thing to have the 

law. I favor the statute making it clearo Af t er all~ a code 

of ethics goes only half wayo 

SENATOR MURRAY~ Have you been asked, Counsellor~ as to 

your opinion about strengthening the rules of the Senate and 

the Assembly over and above any statutory enactment s in order 

to make very clear the attitude of these bodies, much the way 

the Bar Association, with its code of ethic~ conducts itself 

inte rnally1 

MRo CARPENTER: I donu;'t think as the statement readob 

to you this morning by Mre Ke lly shows - I don,H t think tha t 

goes far enough 

• 	 SENATOR MURRAY: I didnnt mean it as the only answer j 

I meant it as part of a general series of remedies o 

MRo CARPENTER: If you pass this law j I dontit think 

you will need it~ in the first place In the second place,Q 
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I can remember the conduct of members of this House many 

years ago where they were never censUred or put out or 

• 	 anything else - and 1 am speaking now of Senators some of 

whom are dead. You know, you bedong to a golf club and you• 
hardly ever throw a member out for tearing up the turf and 

not replacing the divots. It is very difficult to throw out 

one of your own friends and I think it is far better to leave 

that to the Attorney General to prosecute a statute. 

SENATOR MURRAY: And, finally, Counsellor, would you 

care to give your opinion as to the efficacy, again not as 

the only remedy but as part of a general picture, of some 

sort of official board. You touched on it b~fore. Do you 

think it would help or hinder in terms of part of a series of 

recommendations? 

MR. CARPENTER: To have a board to pass on the conduct 

of a member of the legislature? 

SENATOR MURRAY: No. On the question of conflict of 

interest not only with a member of the legislature but with 

anyone in the state employ. 

MR. CARPENTER: In my opinion, you will get the best 

results to put a stop to conflicts of interest by having a 

statute to be enforced by the Attorney General rather than 

through anybody elsee You have there an official set up by 

the constitution to do a job and he would have to do it. 

SENATOR MURRAY: Thank you. 

MR. YAUCH: The members of the Commission asked most 

of the questions that occurred to me to ask, as I listened 
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to your testimony, Mr. Carpenter, but there are just a 

couple of questions that I would like to put to you. 

The reason a lot of these questions have been asked is 

because eventually it is going to be the responsibility of• 
this Commission of weighing the whole situation and possibly 

using the right terminology-in the act, and so on, which is 

going to deal with the various problems that have been pin­

pointed here today. 

Now, as to section number 3 of bill number 1, which 

deals with legislators, I take it that that does not only 

prohibit appearance before state agencies, so on and so forth, 

in cases where the state is a party but also prohibits a 

legislator from appearing before any of those agencies 

mentioned in section 3 on behalf of a private cliento 

MR. CARPENTER: That's right. 

MR. YAUCH: Now, referring to section I of bill 1, Just 

as a matter of information so that I have clear in my mind 

the reason for the difference that exists here in this 

paragraph 1 of bill 1 and paragraph 4 of bill number 2 

MR. CARPENTER: Two and five years? 


MR. YAUCH: Noo I am not too concerned about two and 


five years. 

MR. CARPENTER: Two and five percent, you mean~ 
~ 

MR. YAUCH: Yes, two and five percent. In the matter 

of legislators you have the amount of the holdings that may 

be held up to 2 percent; in the case of state employees you 

have used 5 percent. Is that at all significant? that 

difference? 
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MR. CARPENTER: My recollection is that we took those 

percentages from a law of one of the other states. I don't 

know whether it was New York State or some other state that 

had those differences and I just adopted them. Do with them 

as you please. 

MR. YAUCH: All right. There is no real significance 

to that difference. 

MR. CARPENTER: No. 

MR. YAUCH: One other thing, please. In section number 

4 of bill number 2, at the end, it says: ftunless pursuant 

to an award of contract let after public notice and 

competitive bidding." Now, there is no such exception under 

bill number "1, paragraph 1, that applies to state legislators. 

Would you please state why you didn't think it was necessary 

to have that same sort of exclusion? 

MR. CARPENTER: Well, number 1 was prepared first. 

Maybe I got a better idea later on. I think if you have 

public bidding you answer all the purposes. 

MR. YAUCH: All right, sir. Now, my last question: 

I showed you before you started testifying a copy of the 

opinion of Judge Hughes in the South Amboy Trust Company ­

Hoffman Case. 

MR. CARPENTER: Yes. 

MR. YAUCH: Do you think now, I am not pinning 

you down to this because I realize that it would require
• 


probably an analysis of the language of these acts and so 

on : but~ Just for our general information, do you believe 

that the provisions of these two bills, 1 and 2, which are 
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advocated by you and the State Bar Association, would deal 

with the situation which is disclosed by the opinion of the 

Court in that case? You recall there where one party was 

the President of the Bank and at the same time held an 

official state position, and he did business with himselfo 

MR. CARPENTER: Of course, that is direct conflict of 

interest. Now, whether these bills would hit that or not, 

I would have to read them over carefully to see,mysel~ but 

the law affects - thate That is a matter really of a manvs 

own conscience. You can't help that. 

MR. YAUCH: And a breach of trusto 

MR. CARPENTER: It certainly was a breach of trusto You 

can't by legislation affect all possible types of breaches of 

trusto 

MR. YAUCH: There is no doubt about that. Well, I 

believe we have covered all the questions I had in mind as 

we went along listening to Mro Carpenter. Are there any 

other questions? 

SENATOR MURRAY: Something came to my mind while you 

were questioning him, Counsellor, and it is again a matter 

of definition. Under paragraph 3 of bill number 1, where 

you have the exclusion of members of the legislature from 

appearing before any state agency, etco, will you include 

in that such organizations or bodies as the county tax board, 

the members of which with respect to that county must be 

approved at least by the member of the Senate from that 

county. 

MR. MARCIANTE: I believe that was covered, wasn't 

it? 
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MR. YAUCH: Well, not specifically. There was a 

question before as to local officials, like freeholders and 

so on, and I believe Mr. Carpenter stated that he didn't 

believe this bill applied , to them. 

SENATOR MURRAY: I am talklng, Counsel, about appearances 

by a lawyer legislator before a county tax board~the members 

of which he, as a senator, may have approved of. 

MR. CARPENTER: I do not think he ought to appear and 

argue for reductIon of taxes for this reason: the state's 

tax and state's revenue is directly affected to some extent, 

not as much as the municipalitJ~s, of course, in the county) 

but to some extent the state gets some of those taxes. I 

don't think he should be there. I have known of an instance 

where a state senator appeared before a county tax board and 

came out and bragged about how he was going to get away with 

something. Now, that isn't right. 

SENATOR MURRAY: Well, is it inherently a conflict of 

interest, in your opinIon, that a legislator should favor 

reduction in taxes? 

HR. CARPENTER: For a particular client? 

SENATOR rvIURRAY: El ther for a particular client or 

by voting for a bill which would benefit himself as one of 

the taxpayers. 

MR. CARPENTER: Again, l,.'I1hat you are aiming at is the 

use of the legislator's position for the purpose of getting 

something that somebody else could not get. 

SENATOR MURRAY: That is obvious, yes. 
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MR. I\EATING~ l'-1r. Carpent.er, the Counsel to the 

Commission has raised a question in connection with the 

South Amboy Trust opinion. That is the case, isn't it, 

Counsellor? 

MR. YAUCH: Yes. 

MR. KEATING: Will you specifically point out in either· 

bill number I or 2 the section of either bill that would prevent 

the Governor of the State of New Jersey from repeating what 

was done in that particular case. 

MR. CARPENTER~ That would come under number 2 because 

he was not in the legislature at the time. 

MR. KEATING: Bill number 27 Bill number 2. That covers 

employees. 

MR. CARPENTER~ And officers. 

l'-1R. KEATING: Well, which particular section would 

prevent what is alleged to hav~ happened in that particular 

case, that is the funneling of state funds through a given 

bank? 

MR. CARPENTER: I do not thinlt that it would touch that 

situation. 

MR. KEATING~ Then to that extent these bills are 

grossly defective. 

l'-1R. CARPENTER~ I wouldn't say so. I say tha t for 

this reason - you can't possibly draft a bill that is going 

to stop the machinations and the devices of a man who wants 

to put over something. You can 2 t ant icipate ito The common 

law takes care of that, as it has in that particular case. 

You have got to bring suito That gentleman could have been 
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punishe~ undoubtedlY9 unde ~ s ome o the r law had he been 

detected while he was alive. 

MRo KEATING: Then you think there is adequate 

legislation to cover such a situation. 

MRo CARPENTER: We11 9 there is legislation. Now, let's 

see if I can put my finger on it. I think in my report I 

stated the various conflicts of interest that apply - impeach­

ment of a public officer; he might have been impeached. He 

held a position as head of a department. Embezzlement by 

public officials - he could have been probably indicted under 

that. Attempts to commit an indictable offense, conspiracy, 

misconduct in office - there are plenty of statutes that 

apply to that sort of thing. I don't now recall all the 

details of it but it was a misuse of state funds which 

amounted to an embezzlemento 

SENATOR MURRPY~ Counsel, may I make an inquiry with 

respect to section 6 of the second bill, where you describe 

"party officer" which we touched upon before. I meant at 

that time to ask you why did the definition exclude any 

party pdsition below the state leve J except county 

chairman which is specifi c a lly ment i oned. It would seem to 

me that a municipal or coun ty level political officer of 

any designation would not be excluded and it could almost 

mean that, let's say, the most active campaigner for a 

certain partisan group or par t y c ould serve as judge of a 

court of record unless exc luded by this section 6 which 

doesn't seem to apply to municipal leve l s or county levels. 
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Woodbury of which he was President. That I think was all 

changed. There was qui t e a scandal abo t It. He is dead 

now. He has been dead many years. I remember that Mr. 

Margetts, when he was State Treasurer 9 put through a 

regulation or rule or an order that he would not deposit 

any funds of the State in any bank unless they agreed to pay 

a certain rate of interest. It can be controlled by the 

Commission. I don't know whether there is a statute on that 

or not. 

MR~ KEATINGg Then you really feel that matters like 

that, such as the direction of deposit of State funds in 

certain banks can today be controlled by departmental 

regulation providing the department head wants to enact 

such a regulation. 

MR. CARPENTER~ There is no question about it. 

MR. KEATING: Now, we had before us at the last public 

hearing various departmental heads of the State and It would 

look as if they have done a pretty good job of cleaning their 

own house. Have you, of your own knowledge, a regulation 

which would prevent a recurrence of what has happened in 

the South Amboy Trust Case? 

MRo CARPENTER~ No o 

MR. KEATING~ Well, would you recommend that the Bar 

Association incorporate in this bill a specific clause which 

would prevent it in the future because that9 of course, 

from the standpoint of its magnitud~ is a gross conflict of 

interest. 
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MR. CARPENTER: Well, ",[hen you talk about the deposit 

of State funds in banks, the economIc conditions from time to 

time cause dangers, and I don't think it would be wise to 

pass a law to that effect for this reason - interest mayor 

may not be allowed on a bank account. There was a great deal 

of objection when Mr. Margetts put through that order because 

some banks had deposits, wouldn't put up bonds to secure them 

and wouldn't pay interest. You may run into orders from the 

Federal Reserve either to pay interest or not to pay interest. 

I don't think you ought to interfere too much with that sort 

of ebb and flow of moneys. 

MR. KEATING: Well, where do you draw a distinction 

between a legislator 

" MR. CARPENTER: I think we ought to rely on the 

conscience, if you want to put it that way, or the integrity 

of the men who are appointed as State Treasurers and State 

Comptrollers to control that thing subject to the publicity 

and the light of day that flows in on those things now, when 

it didn't used to. 

MR. KEATING: Well, why do you draw such a fine 

distinction between a legislator who is an officer of a 

corporation and a legislator who is an officer of a bank? 

MR. CARPENTER: You mean a legislator who is an 

officer of a bank? 

MR. KEATING: Yes. 

IVIR ~ CARPENTER ~ Depositing money of the State? 

MR. KEATING: NO g but ~..., 

MR. CARPENTER: He can't do it., 
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MR. KEATING~ No. A State official can direct the 

deposit of funds in a favored bank merely because the 

legislator is an officer of that bank. Now j I am not talking 

about specific cases~ I am j us t talking about what may happen. 

You were very clear about the prohibition against an officer 

of a corporation who is a legislator appearing against -­

MR. CARPENTER: It may be that that should be broadened 

to stop that or prevent any trouble about it. I think that 

sort of thing has been done by the State officer rather than 

any legislator. They suffer no loss in that, you see, except 

loss of interest. 

MR. KEATING: That's what I am attempting to cover ­

the conflict of interest of a State official who directs the 

deposit of funds in a favored bank. That is the nub of the 

South Amboy Trust Case, as I take it. 

MR. CARPENTER~ That's right. 

MR. YAUCH: Your point is, Mr. Keating, that if funds 

hadn't been on deposit in the South Amboy Trust Company Bank 

there would not have been any loss. 

MR. KEATING: That is correct, Mr. Yauch. 

MR. CPR PENTER: I thinI-{ that, perhaps, should be 

included in a law directed right to the State Treasurer and 

the Comptroller or somebody. It should affect that depart­

ment rather than a general law on the subject matter. 

!VIR. KEATING: Well, Mro Carpenter, don't you consider 

that an example of conflict of interest? 

MRo CARPENTER: It is to deposit moneY9 there is no 

doubt about it, in his own bank. 
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MR. KEATING~ \ve11, what is the difference between 

a Highway Commissioner who a'vJards work to a firm of which 

a legislator is a member and the State Treasurer who deposits 

funds in a bank of which a legislator is an officer. 

MR. CARPENTER: Essentially, there is no difference. 

Maybe we ought to broaden this beyond the area where we have 

attacked it. 

MR. KEATING: Well, that was my original question ­

should the bill include a prohibition against that type of 

conflict of interest. 

MR. CARPENTER: How would you like me to make an 

attempt to draw a paragraph on that and send it to you. 

SENATOR MURRAY: That would be welcomed. 

MR. CARPENTER~ I will try it. 

SENATOR MURRAY~ Are there any other questions, 

gentlemen1 

MR. YAUCH: Mr. Chairman, we have two witnesses here 

that haven't been heard yet, Mr. Richard Amster of the 

New Jersey State Bar Association and Mr. Thomas Kean, 

Public Relations Director of the New Jersey State Federation 

of Labor. 

(Discussion off the record) 

SENATOR MURRAY~ 1'1ay I thank you, Counsellor Carpenter, 

for your very excellent assistance to this Commission and, 

through you, your own Commi t tee for the fine '1rlork \lIlhich they 

have done .. 

We will proceed, Counselo 
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MR. YAUCH: Mr. Chairman and gen tl emen of the Cornmission: 

OUr next witness is Mr. Rlcha rd Amster £) an a tto rney of this 

state from Newark, who is a membe r ( f the New Jeir s ey state Bar 

Committee that prepared the repo r t s Nos. 1 and 29 having to do 

with the bills that have been re f erred to here this morning, 

which are sponsored by the New Jersey state Bar Association. 

As I stated before with reference to the other representa­

tives of the state Bar who have appeared here this morning, we are 

certainly very grateful for their cooperation in bringing us this 

information to assist USo 

MHo RICHARD AMSTER~ Mro Chairman, it is with some degree 

of trepidation that I appear after my distinguished elders and 

betters have spoken to you 9 but I will do the best I can. 

I was a member of this committee and have been quite 

interested in this subject, and I did some of the research on 

it and I thought I might be of some assistance in giving you 

some of the thinking of the members of the committee. My own 

feeling with regard to the drafting of the legislation was that 

the major effort should be made to preserve the adversary nature 

of transactions between private citizens and the state of New 

Jersey. I am sure that the lawyers, and also the non-lawyers, 

of the Commission will reco gni ze tha t in many cases where a 

claim is asserted agains t t he St a t e 9 and t he c l aim being 

handled by an administrative agency of the state, in essence 

the claim is of an adversary c ha r acter'. There is the state; 

there is the private litiga nt .... one being represented by the 

Attorney General ~s Office Of' an a t t orney of the Department, 

and the private citizen being represented by an attorney who 
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is asserting a c l a i m. 

I want t o make hI :: p o in,t ~ We .. a ve al l t a ked abou t 

degree her-eo When yo· and I ":, 3: k a t .. '~t t ~le b l atant !ase of a 

shock! 9 conf lict 'if ,nt,3r.e ..~ t 9 I am. s~, :re; 'We a r e a ll ",, 11 C(Jmple t e 

agreement o The r e i :~ no prclb." em w~. t tha.t II All of us agree.9 

and I ima gine tha t ninety=five pe r cent of t he c i tizens of the 

S. ta te D i f no t a hund re d 9 acl{nowle ge the f ac t tha t that should. 

be oppe d a nd that we have had en u gh f r.,he mG 

I will give you a li t tle ba ckground of one of them in 

a few moment s o 

It is the c a se t ha t i s not S0 obvious whJ ch is the one 

which gives us ail the mos t t r ub l e o It Is very dIfficult, and 

we struggled with thIs bill to a point where it is exceedingly 

aggravating 9 because you wan t t o se t up proper limitations but 

at the same time you donu t wan t to harm n ice people who are 

dOVJl1 he re and doing a r ,~p utable job But it! s the not so0 

blatant case that can be di ff! u lt ll It is the case of 

appearing as an a ttor ney rep re ent l ng property owners when a 

highway is going throu gh e oWp C~ ot .hink of any case 

whe r e the sale i s be ing ne got i ated~ where the adversary nature 

of t he transact i on shoul d be p r e se rv . as zealously as that 

part i c ul a r case o Tha t Is t he case where moneys are be l 9 pa id 

and peop l e are bat t l ing ove r -he amo~n.t 9 a nd the money is coming 

ou t o f the taxpaye rs u po .¥e .... e i d 'f.,o. r dire ct l y or !nd ire c t. l y o 

I can think of the: case ""' and £) Sena tor' Murray.ll this 

dea l s w th the state probl~m a~d 9 bear 11 mind~ you have 

.:w uched upon the most d l f f oc '1 ';:, q le ~· .1' · , ~. t ~ n to a n 5 we r <= ' he man 

who h a s a cont inu !?ty ~) f T'et.~ :n,,; ;~ s 3,u d "{V'h.o then c ome ..;: down here 
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to serve his state and his county and finds himself in a 

situation where he didn't get those clients by virtue of his 

legislative appointment - he got them before he was a legislator. 

But I think it puts him to a pretty rigorous test in a case where 

he files an estate tax return and the state Treasurer 'says, UOh, 

no, that one miliion dollar ~ transfer last year is a transfer 

in contemplation of death and we are going to include that as 

part of the taxable estate. n NoW, he's got a problem, because 

now it has become an adversary contest. It has become a contest 

by the people of the state of New Jersey, through their Treasurer, 

against his client. And he, by virtue of his office, if he's a 

'senator more particularly, but if he's an Assemblyman also ­

by virtue of his office may have an unfair advantage, a jump on 

the rest of the lawyers and the rest of the citizens of this 

state. 

SENATOR MURRAY~ Is that of itself a conflict of 

interest? I wouldn't think so. 

MRo AMSTER: I say to this extent: NOW, you must 

consider the other aspect of this, and this, I think, is the 

critical aspect of it: All of us here have heard people make 

derogatory remarks about politics, and in certain counties of 

this state I think the majority of the people would rather 

seek the assistance of a politically-connected lawyer as 

opposed to any lawyer, maybe on the mistaken belief, and 

probably in most cases on the mistaken belief, that he can 

get the jump. 

Well, I think that in a situation of that sort, tre 

very fabric of democracy is in jeopardy, when the public of 

this state, or any substantial ~ ')portion of them in any 
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particular part of this state, feel that the equality of 

treatment is not guaranteed except in the case where you look 

for the best man, and by ftbest man" you don't mean the most 

able, the most erudite, the most effective advocate, but you 

mean the man with the best political connections in dealing 

face to fa ce with the representat i ve of the state, who is 

asserting a claim against you. Then I say that that is the 

second facet of the problem that you as legislators and you 

as members of this Commission must face e 

SENATOR MURRAY: What is the conflict of interest there, 

Counsellor? 

MRo AMSTER: The conflict of interest in that case is 

that you are representing a client in a matter where you are 

also under a fiddciary relationship to the public which elected 

you. Again I acknowledge that this Is a difficult thing to see, 

but I happened to get a little language on this pointe In this 

state, as in most states, our courts have been intransigent 

in not permitting any encroachments upon the absolute require­

ments that are imposed upon a f i duc-iaryo And there are many 

cases where a fiducuary in honest error has been surcharged 

when actually it seemed unjust to the lawyers who read the 

case and the people who a r gue it for him to be done so 0 

SENATOR MURRAY: Counse l ~ I am stopping you because 

donut think my last question was clearo I was asking where 

is the conflict of interest, not with respect to the obvious 

adversary position that you described, but to the secondary 

manifestation which you dwelt on at s ome length; namely, the 

presumed advantage that one lawyer as a legislator has over 

another, not even in the ca s~ who Isnvt a legislatore 
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MRe AMSTER~ No ~ noo I t h i nk that is a policy cons ider~ 

at ion. We are no t deal ing wi t h t he e se nce of the conf 1 i et of 

interesto But ge t ting back to t he ha r shness of imposing 

absolute standards upon a fiductary, and every member of the 

Legislature i s in a fid ucua ry capaci ty = our cour ts have he ld 

that recently ~ I want to r e ad y ou what Mr o Justi ce Cardozw 

said, where a fid ilcda ry came to t he c ourt and said~ nYou ure 

being unfair to me., I di d this in goo d fa ith . I t hink you 

should make an except io in my case be cause w have a ll a t e d 

in the best of fai t h o fa And thi s i s a ve r y f amous case - Me i nhard 

vS e Salmon ~ when he was then the Ch ief Judge of the New Y1:> r k 

Court of Appeals., 

MRo YAUCH~ Do you have the ci t a t i on? 


MRQ AMSTER: yes~ I d I t is 249 No Yo 458 9 164 North ~
0 

eastern 545: 

HMany forms of co duct permissible in a 
workaday wo r ld f o r t hose acting a t arms V leng th 
are forbidden t o those bound by fiduciary ti e s o 

A trus t e e is hel d t o someth ing s tri cter than the 
mor als of t he mark e t p laceo Not honesty a lone 9 

but the punctili o of an hono r t he mos t sens itive 9 

is then the s tanda rd of be ha v i or . As to thi s 
there has de velope d a t r a d! i on t hat is unbe ndi n g 
and i nvete r ate., Uncomp r i sing r i gidity has been 
the a ttitude of c ourt s of equity whe n pe tItIoned 
to undermine t he rule of undiv ded loyalty by the 

Rdisinte gr a t ing ero i on u of part icu l ar excep t i onso 
~ on l y thus has the l evel of conduct l or f i duCiar ies 
been kept at a 1 vel h" ghe r than t hat trodden by 
the crowd o " 

NOw, I t hink tha t vs magn i fi cent l anguage and 9 i n some 

instances, answe rs t he probl em t hat Mr. Carpenter strug g l ed 

for the answer to and I t hink 1 wil l s t rugg l e f o r f te 
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What about the e xcept ions - reduc ing it away from the 

blatant conflict? We bot h acknowl edge tha t in the seri ous 

case there is no que stion e But if there is a threat of 

detriment to the pu bli c i nte re st~ then I say we have c ome to 

the point where we ought t o fore cl os e i t forever And~ sure ,o 

we are going to harm some pe op le a l ittl e b i t = s ome a l it tle 

bit more - but 1 think t ha t t he pu b l ic in te re st in the se 

particular cases outwe i ghs t he de triment t o t he ind Ividual 0 

Essentially ou r canons of professi onal eth i cs have 

struggled for years D an d t hat wa s a particul a rl y damaging 

question that was asked 9 "Wha t ws t h mat ter wi th t he Ba r 

Association?" 

MY on l y ans wer to tha t i s t hat the Bar Ass oc l a ion t oday~ 

and as it did under t he d i s t ingu ishe d l eader hi p of your 

counsel, is struggl i ng to assert an a bsol te s t an da r d of 

morality in this stateo We may make mistakes and we may not 

always be as diligent as we should be~ but we a r e do i ng 

everything in our power, t ha t is consist n t with the public 

good, to effectuate t hose ends whi h will enhance an d 

strengthen the fabr ic of democracy which a l l of us e n joy and 

accept as an i ntegral pa rt of our lives o 

So there is thi s p ro b l em = t here i s this p r oblem of t he 

not so bla t ant ca.se o But I want to t ake a f ew minut s of my 

time~ and I donut have t oo much l ef t ~ t o ta l k t o you about 

one conf lict of intere s t case t hat wa befo r e thi s Legis= 

lature in 19410 It us a very famous one ~ an d I suggest t hat 

at your le l sure$ if you gentleme n woul d address your a ttent ion 

to two volume s t hat are in the State Ll brary=- It is a r po rt ~ 

under the Ed l on admini tra tion, of Si dney Gol dmann~ Thomas 
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Graves and Roger Hinds of The Organization and Administration 

of the state Highway Department, and 1 want to read you just a 

few portions of ito The first thing I would like to read you 

is a table whibh appears on page 312 = portions of this tab1e o 

It is a table of percentages i n excess of appraisals paid to 

property owners during the condemnation of a certain right~of-

way = percentages in excess of appraisals in the Highway 

Department filese Now s in the preface to this table the 

reporters advise that they had to eliminat e many appraisals 

where obvious wrongdoing had taken place o They threw those all 

outo They tried to take a sampling of good appraisals in good 

cases o 

NOw, where the property owner was not represented~ he 

received 100044 per cent of the average appraised va lue 

in the Highway DepartmentHs files for his prope rtyo He 

received 103039 per cent of the Department 9 s appraisal = 

the Highway Department 9 s appraisalo you see 9 in the e cases ~ 

there are Department appraisals and ou tside appraisalso So 

the non=represented property owner came pretty c1oseo 

Where non~political lawyers represented these property 

owners, he received 108 086 per cent of the average appraisal 

and 110 0 07 per cent of the Department appraisalo 

NOw, 1 ~m go ing t;ib skip down a few~ 
~ 

Former legislators - average appraisal 111024 per cent~ 

Department appraisal 122 0 87 per cento 

Legislators in the 1941 Assembl y and Senate ~ thatus 

when this report was drafted = 117014 of average appraisal 

and 127075 per cent of Department appraisalo 
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This is what the repor t e r s said: "OWners represented 

by membe r s of the L,eglsl ature~ former legislators, or 

attorneys ident ified i n pol itics, and contractors or other 

persons hav i ng ot her business relations with the state Highway 

Department ~ obtained a price subs t antially in excess of the 

Departmentis appraisale Owners who were not represented, or 

who were represented by a t torneys or age nts without known 

political connections, obta i ned a pr i ce reasonably in line 

with the average and depa rtment app r aisalse n 

Now 1 want to go ono on page 348 of th is Report, the 

following is set forth~ "The investigation i n to the affairs 

of the state Highway Department~ particular l y in connection 

with real estate acquisItions , indicates the need of regulating 

the activities of leg is la t o r s and o t her persons where the 

business of the Depart ment i s concerned e The t heory of such 

regulation is that those i n a pos i tIon to wield possible 

influence or to acquire confident al information regarding 

the affairs of the Depa rtment , shou l d not be allowed t o 

negotiate with the Departmento 

ttThe Federal Government has such a statute" and I'm 

skipping a few words o Now~ t here' s a footnotee The foot­

note says: "A bill patterned af t er the Federal statute 

dealing with this subject was submi tted by a member of the 

Legislature on November 13~ 1941 e It That's the State Legis­

lature e nHowever,? he was refused permission by the majority 

leader to introduce the bi ll a" Then it goes on to describe 

the bi 11 0 

So in 1941 th i s ve r y su bject that we are talking about 

now was troub ling t he cit i ze ns of this state o 

84 

You are viewing a document archived at the New Jersey State Library.



On page 637 of the Report, it states as follows~ 

nA survey of all right""'of=way transactions involving 

over $2,000 consumma t e d during t he administration of the 

Highway Commissi oner revealed that owners represented by 

members of the Legislature~ former legislators~ or attorneys 

identified with poli t lcs 9 and contractors or persons having 

other business re l ations wi t h the state Highway Departments> 

obtained a price subs t antially i n excess of the Departmentus 

appraisalo u 

And last~ but not leas t ~ n page 6719 they make as the 

iron-clad recorrune ndation~ '-The i nvestigation into the affairs 

of the state Highway Department , particularly in connection 

with real estate acquisition, indicates the need of regulating 

the activi t ies of legi s la t o r s and ot her persons where the 

business of the Depa r tment is co c erned.\1t. etco~ e t co 

A supplement to that report was filedo This report was 

primarily the responsibili t y of Sidney Qoldmann D now a Judge~ 

and Thomas Jo Grave s ~ who was then the Public Re l a t ions 

Director of the s t ate Chamber of Commerce o Roger Hlnds ~ a 

man of distinguished reput ation at the bar 9 filed a supplementa l 

reporto That is also in t he state Libraryo Both of t hese are 

available here o I got your Sergeant-at-Arms to get them out 

for meo 

MRo YAUCHg I ca l l ed t he Commi s sionQs attention to both 

of those o We are very glad to have you pinpoint some of the 

items 0 

MRo AMSTER~ On page 154 of Parts I~ II and III of the 

Report s> Mr ~ Hinds mal{e s this obse rva ti on: 
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nyour examiner ha sjl from the beginning of the investigation,9 n 

(this was in 1941~ i nci dentally) tlinsisted that it is against 

the public intere s t p and cos t ly to the ta~p.ayers, for the 

members of the state Legislatu re to represent private clients 

in negot i ations with the state Highway Department, and also 

that the appointment of uoutside u appraisers in certain 

counties was largely pol it ica l , resulting in the selection of 

unqual ified men for the work ot~ And then he deals wi th a 

specific case which invol ved a state Senator of this state o 

MRo YAUCH~ May I ask you righ t at that point: The 

figures that you quoted from that report, as I recall, had 

to do with negotiationo 

MRo AMSTER: Negotiation, yes i siro 

MRo YAUCH~ Not court verdicts in connection with con~ 

demnation o 

MRo .AMSTER~· Absolutely!) I want to make that clear., 

This is a criticism of appraisal and negotiation 

procedures in this particular aspecto It doesngt deal with 

the actual cou r t condemnations themselves o 

NOw, I have read the statement s that were contained in 

the press by the various members of the Legislature who were 

questioned by the reporterso I recognize 9 of course~ that 

the reporters interpolate themselves in many cases, but I 

would like to talk about one or two of these statements: 

Two of the non-lawyer legislators stated that the 

proposals of the state Bar Association were too stringent 

against attorneyso Such is not the intention, nor is it the 

purport of the legis l ation!) I would only say in answer to 
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that, nlf the shoe fitsjl wear ito" These bills were drafted to 

cover eve r y single membe r of the Senate and Assembly of the 

sta te of New Je r seyo If j) in a given case ~ it affects a 

lawyer - l awyers more parti cularly than other members of the 

Legislature - so be Ito 

MRo KEATINGg But, Mr. Amster~ apparently it was not 

drawn to cover officials of the state Government0 

MRo AMSTER~ I am talking about Bill 1 now9 Mro Keatingo 

Bill 2 covers offlc i a1sg 

I t hink that the September 22 art i cle that I have In 

front of me, in the Newark Evening' News" deals with Bill 10 

That is the article where Senator Cowgill said in his statement jl 

tt"If weRre not honest£! we donut belong in the Legis1ature o 

Well, I say that i t ns the opinion of the state Bar 

Association that we are wholly in accord with him~ but we feel 

that honesty is a standard == when I say we are wholly in accord 

with him, I mean that honesty should be a condition precedent 

to any public trust. But we also feel that the same argument 

might be made against a bank tellero If he is not honestj) he 

doesn 9 t belong where he 15 handling moneyo 

SENATOR MURRAY~ Did you say "Senator Cowgill"? 

fvffio .ANlSTER~ Yesjl it says, "Senate Minority Leader 

Joseph w. c owgill of Camden was vehement in his oppositionQU 

ftlf we are no t honest~ we don ut belong in the Legislature 5l " 

was his statemen t . Thatus what he saido 

SENATOR MURRAY~ You donut mean that he said that before 

this Commission? 

MR. AMSTER: Noo This was an outside statement o 
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SENATOR MURRAY: senator Cowgill didnvt appear and I 

was ,:just wondering if you were confusing him with Senator 

Waddington. 

MR .. .AMSTER~ I donyt think anybody would argue that we 

should el iminate -statutes deal ing wi th embezzlement and larceny 

and the like Honesty is assumed in cases of this sort.o 

Assembly Speaker, Mr" Mills, has stated that '~ the restric­

tion might automatically keep a municipal attorney like himself 

out of the legislatIve picture ftA lot depends on the moralso 

of the individual people, and morals canst be legislated,," 

I believe that the statement that was issued indicates 

that morals is legislated in this State on as many occasions 

as we can, and the great concern as to pornographic literature 

at the present time is an attempt to legis l ate moralityo So 

I think that that does not particularly hold water. 

NOw, I differ with Mr. Carpenter one iota" I am not at 

all convinced that in a given case there might be a conflict 

by a person who holds bo t h a job in a municipality and a person 

who holds a Job as a Senator of this State or an Assemblyman 

of this State. I am not sure. But it is a problem and I 

think that the connnission would be unwise if they didnvt 

we i g h ' . tha t ma t t e r ve ry carefull Y , be c aus e I th ink i tis a c lose 

question on occasion if a man might find himself in a position 

where he would be as s erting an interest which was so specific 

that it might possibly constitute a conflict. I am not sure. 

I don't knowe 

MRo YAUCH: Mr" Amster, I really don't understand that 

point. Wou ld you explain it a bit more, dealing with a local 

magistrate, and then you sa i d a state legislator? 
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MR. Al\1STER ~ I would s ay that an Assemblyman or a 

Senator, who holds a high county job, might find himself in 

a position where it is a very serious problem; he is torn 

between--

MFt, YAUCH~ You mean about appearing before a 

magistrate? 

MRo AMSTER~ No, noo I mean about corning right down 

here and votinge I cou l d think of a rather serious problem 

in a case like that, where he certainly should not make an 

appearance before ei t her a state agency or a county agency 

in that case. 

MR.FRANKLIN~ Could I ask you a question just at this 

point on that? Is it your feeling that a municipal attorney 

or an attorney who represents a county~ or some other county 

or municipal body such as the Planning Board or Board of 

Adjustment, should not appear before any state agency; that 

is, an attorney who is a member of t he Legislature? 

MR ~ AMSTER: I don ~t think S09 although I think he might 

have soma rather serious problems with his own conscience or 

his own ethical standards I only can relate it to what youo 

and I accepto How many times in your practice do you 

seriously weigh whether or not the acceptance of a position 

in a case may or may not be wise in view of some other 

position you have taken in another case remotely associated 

with it1 It happens all the time o 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLINg We l l , if one of the things you 

are interested in - and I gather from your testimony that 

you are = is not only the technical question of a conflict of 
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interest between the state and the private client of an 

attorney, but also the effect which a state representative 

by reason of his office may have upon the deciding body 

before whom he appears, I wonder what the difference is between 

a legislator representing a municipality before a state agency 

and a legislator representing a private client? I can't see 

the difference. 

MRo AMSTER: As Mro Marciante said to Mro Carpenter, 

"You are not looking for the millenium, are yoU?tI And I am 

not looking for the millenium o I will take the level of , 

morality that is set forth in our statute, and I don't think, 

in that case, it would touch upon that particular aspect. 

think that we have divided them to the degree that there would 

be no problem in that particular regard~ although it would 

bother me, Mr. Franklino I would be troubled by it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN~ Wel13 look~ at Section 3 of 

Bill No.1, it would seem to me that the member of the Legis­

lature was prohibited from appearing directly or indirectly, 

and there is no exclusion in the case of a member of the 

Legislature representing a municipality. 

MR. AMSTER~ My feeling on this is, and again here I 

am at a slight variance with my distinguished predecessor 

in this seat, I do not bel i eve that a member of the Legis­

lature whose partner is practicing law as a law partnership 

can appear. I donat believe his partner can appear before a 

state agency_ The dis t inc t i on I make - and there was 

particular difficu lty on this point - is I believe he can 

appear pro se, for himself. I don't believe that it is 

either wise or practical to say that a State Senator, who is 
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personally involved or whose mother!s estate is personally 

involved in a particular situation, is to be debarred from 

that. NoW, that is qui bbling to a matter of degree, but I 

don't know how else you would answer ito 

MRo YAUCHg Isnut the possible abuse greater there, 

where the profit that he might make as a result of appearing 

before a state agency would be greater than in a case where he 

is appearing in a represent at ive capacity? 

MR. AMSTERg I recognize your pointo However, I think 

that the legal philosophy of thi s state is that there is an 

absolute guarantee of the right to appear for yourself~ and 

in this particular case ~ if my recollection serves me 

correctly~ there was a case where a member of the Legislature 

was asserting a claim on be half of himself, not too long ago, 

and it was more than adequa t e l y covered in the paper, and I 

think that in the attendant pub l icity in a situation of· that 

sort you are going to come out all right, if there is 

disclosure" 

SENATOR MURRAY~ Counse l lor, on that point, we have had 

drawn to our attention certain situations, not affecting any 

state employee~ but where realty or financial consultants or 

insurance consu l tants, non-salaried and perhaps, indeed if 

you were to track it down, wouldnvt even qualify as an 

employee but nevertheless hold that capacity with respect to 

a municipality, then with respect to the county of which that 

municipality i s a par t~ then at times with respect to certain 

state transactions ~ similarly an auditor who audits the 

books for a board of education J then for the city from which 

the board derives its funds, then for the county through 
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which state funds pass to both the city and the board. NOw, 

my question to you is~ in t hese cases, where state funds are 

involved, although perhaps no state office or employment held, 

should we not explore that area of conflict of interest as well, 

because derivatively the state and its interests are very 

materially affected o 

MR.., AMSTER~ Well, I happen to agree with you one 

hundred per cento I wouldnut do it, but I mean, thatQs no 

criterion, and I am sure that the attorneys present in this 

room, on many occasions a have problems as to whether or not 

they should or should noto Thatus t he standard that I go byo 

The canons of ethics touch upon so many of these things 

inferentiallyo This particu lar point Is not touched upon~ 

although Canon 6 deals wi t h adve r se inf l uences and conflicting 

interests j and it says there that it is the duty of a lawyer, 

at the time of re tainer~ to disclose to the client all the 

circumstances of his relations to the parties, and any 

influence in or connection with the controversy which might 

influence the client in the selection of counsel o It is 

unprofessional to represent conflicting interests except by 

the express consent of all concerned given afte r full disclosure 

of the factso 

Within the meaning of this Canon, a lawyer representing 

conflicting interests, when in behalf of one client, it is 

his duty to contend for that which duty to another client 

requires him to oppose~ etc.~ etce 

It is inferentialo you shouldnvt do it if you are a 

legislator, but it doesnot specifically cover. The Ad Hominem 
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Canon, Canon 32, which is a lawyervs duty in the last analysis-­

it I S awfu l pret ty language. But again, here we are coming to 

grips with a ..) speai tl l c , we are coming to grips with something 

that has troubled this state and has troubled other states 

of this countryo 

NoW, in England they have a much more violent remedy. 

There is another doctrine called "The Constructive Trust 

Doctrine,1t and that is the imposition of a constructive trust 

and of any proceeds which are gotten in a manner which is 

inconsistent with a manus fidelity to the public. The 

Burlington Bridge case is an example of that in the state of 

New Jersey but, inte re sting lyenough" in England they impose 

this with a ruthless vigo r upon public servants, and it's 

common law over there; itus not statutory. This is an 

equitable concept that they have developed for many hundreds 

of years and they use it to great effect, because what happens 

is, if this constructive trust is imposed, you lose all the 

proceeds that you gain by virtue of the transaction, but 

under the federal revenue code you donut get a break on the 

income tax you have paid against it, so wherever you have 

made a big killing and they take it away from you, it hurts. 

MHQ · YAUCH: Mro Amster j that principle of law applies 

here also, doesn 9 t it? 

MRo AMSTER: I wou ld s ay that I think it would be an 

extension of the law as it is now in existence. 

SENATOR MURRAY~ May I say, Counsel, with respect 

to the Br i tish~ that they a r e equally ruthless in their 

statutory enactments affe c t ing, for example, political 
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contributions. If my memory serves me correctly, although it 

may not be completely germane to your topic, members of 

Parliament who e xceed, even by unsolicited contributions, the 

limit of the statute' forfeit their winning ;> to the next high 

candidate. And I would recommend that we might study that. 

MRo AMSTER: Well, now we are getting to Mr. Marciante!s 

millenium. 

SENATOR MURRAYg I personally witnessed a situation where 

a candidate in standin g for Parliament j in a L.ondon district, 

requested his campaign manager to secure an injunction against 

an enthusiastic supporter who had put a sign up on his behalf, 

because the cost value of that sign would have exceeded the 

amount which the law permitted him to have as campaign con­

tributions It would be interesting to see the developmento 

of that doctrine in thi s State. 

MR~ AMSTER~ In wrapping it up, I really appreciate-­

MR. YAUCH: Just one question, and I realize lunch has 

been deferred too long now o But I Just want this in the 

record. I donut think itus been covered at all: 

Under Bill Nos 1 of the state Bar, paragraph 3 - and 

this, as you know~ deals with legislators - i s it you r 

thought that this bill wou ld prohibit a member of the state 

Legislature from represe nt ing a client in a condemnation 

case brought by a municipality or a county or a public 

utility, all of which have the right of eminent domain? 

MRo AMSTER~ I think that this bill as presently 

drafted would only relate to the stateo 

MRo YAUCH: Well, I call your attention to the fact 

that in paragraph 3, it states, neither directly or indirectly 
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appear before a state agencYj condemnation commissioner, or 

other instrumental ity of the state of New Jersey. Ii 

SENATOR MURRAY~ Would that include bi-state authorities, 

for example?' 

MRo AMSTER~ yes, I think it would include all of the 

authorities that are in existence by virtue of the acts of 

this legislature, all the instrumentalities. 

Mr. yauck, my own feeling was - at least my intention 

and my understanding was that this touched upon the 

instrumentalities of the state and not the municipal and 

co un t y bodie s It 

SENATOR MURRAY: If so~ it would be certainly one of 

the rare occasions on which the authority of these so-called 

instrumentalities is in any way restricted . e 

Well, Counsel, if there are no further questions, we 

would like to express our thanks to you again for waiting so 

long and touching so cogently upon some of these problems. 

MRe AMSTER: Well, thank you very much. I appreciate 

the opportunity of being here o 

MRo YAUCH~ Now9 Mro Kean, do you want to come up here? 

MR. THOMAS J. KEAN~ I am Public Relations Director, 

New Jersey state Federation of Laboro 

First of all, gentlemen, I would like very much to thank 

you for this opportuniyy in behalf of our Secretary-Treasurer 

Vincent J. Murphy, who couldn't be here today due to a case 

of bursitis, which has him in bed o I wish to submit this 

statement explaining the position of the state Federation of 

Labor. 
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MRe KEATING~ May I suggest to Mr. Kean that, in 

addition to submitting the statement, if he has any comments 

or any questions he would like to ask that have arisen out 

of any testimony heard here this morning, that he be 

permitted to do so nowo 

SENATOR MURRAY: We would be delighted to have his 

comments 0 

MRQ KEAN~ There is one comment J gentlemen: When 

Mr. Carpenter spoke this morning, in answer to a question from 

Mro Marciante about the logic involved in the establishment 

of an Ethics Committee which, as you will note from the 

prepared statement - he said that for years he had been of 

the opinion and had practised same that he could go to any 

learned or elderly attorney and receive sufficient advice on 

matters that might be borderline I disagree, particularlye 

because such would not be official and also the opinion would 

be that of an individualo 

With our proposal, as you will note from the statement, 

five members would be appointed - two by the Governor - I 

forget now the actual dis tr ibution, but I think that 

political lines and motIvations would not be involved; I 

think that a fair opinion, because there is such a broad 

coverage of representation j would be arrived at. 

That's my only comment. 

SENATOR MURRAY: I think that Committee was: two by 

the Governor, one by the President of the Senate, one by 

the Speaker of the House, and one by the Supreme Court Chief 

Justice. 
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MR. KEA.N~ Who would be chairman. 

The statement of the New Jersey state Federation of 

Labor is as follows: 

The officers and the legislative committee of the New 

Jersey state Federation of Labor have given considerable 

thought and much study to the problem presented to the Legis­

lature and to the Electorate arising from existing conflicts of 

interests and their effect upon our various public officials, 

legislative and administrative. 

Our studies have led us to one major conclusion: that 

there is no adequate manner in which legislation can correct all 

of the evils involved in or resulting from conflicts of interest o 

From time to time, it may develop that isolated instances 

will lead the way toward corrective legislation j but an over­

all cure "does not seem to be available, at least at this time, 

through legislation o 

All forms of legislation which have been suggested to 

date, with one or two exceptions, are obviously too drastico 

To prohibit a legislator who is a member of the bar from 

practicing law before our courts is as wrong as to prohibit 

a businessman from buying or selling his merchandise, or a 

labor representative from representing his uniono 

There are only two practices which have clearly been 

shown to be subject to unreasonable abuse: first~ the 

practice of a legislator or other public official of 

representing clients, as an attorney, before administrative 

bodies of the state in matters involving condemnation of 

the clientis real propertyo This p ractice has been 
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universally condemned, and should, we believe, be prohibited 

by lawe It is so small a fraction of the practice of law as 

to constitute only a very minor impediment to the full 

practice of the lawo 

Second, the practice of a public official having an 

interest, of policy=making nature, in a company engaged in 

selling goods or services to an agency of the state in which 

the official is employedo This is propibited generally by 

statute as to counties and municipalities, and should be on the 

state level g at least with respect to administrative officials 

of the state o However s this type of prohibition as to legis­

lators who have no administrative power to let contracts 

would seem unnecessary and inadvisable o 

We are decidedly opposed to the proposal that candidates 

for election to state office should make public disclosure of 

their assets and income 0 This proposal violates the right of 

privacy which we, as Americans, have always cherished and 

protectede It subjects candidates for public office to 

snooping and embarrassment beyond that of other citizens and 

should be rejected as un-American o 

As to legislation in other fields of conflicts of 

interest, we have been unab l e to conceive of any type of 

legislation which would not do more harm than goode 

However, the Bar Association and more recently, the 

Labor Movement, have developed a system of investigation and 

report on morals and ethics that can very well be adapted to 

ethics in public office; namely, the establishment of canons 

of ethics by which public officials can be guided and for a 
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vio l a tion of whi,:~1. su~,r1 o ,~'f 5. ,z ia" s r'an be p unishe d by the ir 

super l or p t he e.e ctorate ~ 

In t he case of the Ba r A..., s ·-c !a:"i "- 'ns D the va 10'115 Ethics 

Commit tEflS have es t ablis ,e d .9 from t .. 'e :1 r very 10 9 experiencejl a 

rathe r large numbe r of cane" n~ of eth" ·... · Charge aga i ns t a0 

lawyer are heard by the Ethi cs Comm ittee s which report 

0infract i ons t o the awye r u s. s perj, lr = the COLr t The court 

then reviews t he fac t s and !mp os e ~ a iscip l i n a _y act ion o 

The o~gan i zed l a bor moveme nt 9 the AFL-CIO, has recently 

created a Conunittee on Eth ica l Practi ce s . This cormnittee has 

establi s hed D s o far » f ive can ns of ethical prac ti ces. It 

Investigates cha rge s of !ol a tions of t he se c anons and reports 

to the super i ors of the office rs of the respective unions, 

namely, the Exe cutive Counci l of t he AFL-CIO and. indirectly~ 

to the electorate of the un ion i t s e lf 9 t he members of that 

unlano It is then i ncumben t pan the membe r ship to take such 

action as it deems prope r t o rorrec t ~he e vi l so 

A simil ar p ro e du r e coul d we ll be adopted by our Legis­

laturee It could c r ea te a Commis s ion on Ethica l Practices in 

Governme n t 0 Th i s Comm.i ss!. on c ou! 9 afte r proper lnvestigationsS) 

expe r i enc e an d t ldy D a op ', f rom t j me to t f me 9 as t he oc cas i on 

a r ises 9 a ser' ie~, of c anon..., of et':tc fo r pu b l ic officials, by 

which they CQu i d gui de t e i Y" c duct in t ..~elr p rIvate as well 

as public ac tiv tie:s o Upon ' , ~.e f ." <; ,:ng of charge: s ag a inst any 

public of "' 1 la.'~,<j w -Ieth~:r l~ 'jl:~"' Q, t ,! nte D executi'e Or' admi i stra­

tive ;l or on i t.s 0 .-' .. ac(" JX~,t 9 t he nun i n
, . ... e e coul d ho ld hearings 

to determi ne whe .he: an.y of the ,!"'an fl..o;; of ethics had be e n. 

vi o l a t ed p 0 - whethe r any canon sh .·ttld be amer!.de ~t' a dop ted~ 
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To aid the committee in its delIberations it should be 

clothed with the power o f su bpoena o It s hould be required to 

report annually to the Governor and the Legislature both as 

to its findings relating to ethics in Government and as to 

its recommendations of legislation t o enforce ethical 

practices$ if anyo 

To assume a well~rounded approach in its dellberations 3 

the committee should consist of a broad representation of 

public and private groups. We therefore recommend that there 

should be five members D one appointed by the President of the 

Senate, one by the Speaker of the AssemblY9 two by the 

Governor, and one by the Chief Justicea The appointee of the 

Chief Justice should be a member of t.he Supreme Court or 

Superior Court bench, and should be the chairman of the Com­

mittee. 

The Committee should be given no power of discipline 

whatever over any public officialo The true superior over 

any publ ic official is the electorate o f the state which, 

when properly informed 9 can generally be expected to adopt the 

p rope r cou rse 0 

For this reason» we beli.eve thats after a hearing con­

cernIng charges of uneth i cal conduct against a public official, 

whether legislative~ administrative or executive~ the Committee 

should be empowered and directed only to make a public report 

of its findings as to the gu.i lt or ifiJ10CenCe of the accused,!) 

and as to the factual basis of t he s e f l nd i n gso 

The possibility and likel i hood of a public hearing and 

a public report as to any alleged violation of an announced 

canon of ethics would!) we believe 5J be an effective deterrent 
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against a violation of ethics by most public officials. 

Those who ignore these canons would be subject to public 

disapproval and an end to 	their tenure of office at an early 

time. 

As to executive or administrative officials, a finding 

of unethical conduct could be made the basis of disciplinary 

proceedings by the Governore Members of the Legislature are 

constitutionally not answerable to anyone but the electorate 

for their conduct in office, but each House of the Legislature 

is granted the power to judge the fitness of its members. In 

either case~ a public condemnation by the ~mmittee for 

unethical practices would, we believe~ be most effective. 

In addItion, the Committee could~ when necessary, make 

such recommendations as experience would dictate for the 

adoption of legislation which at present is either not 

contemplated or is deemed unnecessary or unwise. In this way, 

while legislation does not now seem practicable, further 

experience and study could develop effective and desirable 

legislatIve proposals. The study of the subject would 

continue, and proper legislation would not be forestalled. 

In conclusion, therefore~ we recommend the following: 

1. Legislation prohibiting the legal representation 

in condenmation proceedings of any cl ient by any publ ie 

official. 

2. No requirement that candi da t es for public office 

make disclosure of their assets or income. 

30 Creation of a Conun.1t t ee on Ethics in Government~ 

of 	five members appointed as we h ave suggested 9 with subpoena 
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powers, to create a series of canons of ethics, to investigate 

violations of any of these canons g and to make public report 

of its investigationsD 

40 No attempt to adopt any other legislation at this 

tIme, with the understanding that the Committee will recommend 

any legislation which it may deem desirable. 

SENATOR MURRAY~ Are there any other questions or 

connnents~ gentlemen? 

MR. YAUCH: I haven I t en y, Mr. Chai nnan. 

SENATOR MURRAY~ If not~ I will bring the meeting to a 

close on motion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: I so move you, Mr. Chairman. 

SENATOR MURRAY: May I just say to our secretary 

that I think we should append to our report the time, date 

and place of our next meeting 9 which I donrt know whether 

you have decided upon or not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FRANKLIN: We haven't made any decision. 

We were waiting for you 9 Mro ChairmanD 

SENATOR MURRAY: May we be off the record for just a 

minute while we consult on that. 

(Discussion off the record) 

SENATOR MURRAY: For the record, may I say that the 

Committee has agreed to convene again on Monday, October 21, 

in the Senate Chamber, at 10:30 AoMG~ for its next public 

hearing 0 

The meeting stands adjourned. 

(A D J 0 URN E D) 
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